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community banking services.

Financial Highlights

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Income:
Net interest income (Taxable Equivalent)
Net income

Per Share:
Basic earnings
Diluted earnings
Tangible book value

Average Balances:
Assets
Loans, net
Deposits

Shareholders’equity . . ... ... oo

Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets
Return on average equity (1)
Consolidated tier 1 capital to:

Total average assets (leverage)

Risk-adjusted assets
Total capital to risk-adjusted assets
Net loans charged off (recovered) to average loans
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans
Efficiency ratio
Dividend payout ratio

Per share information of common stock

2003
First quarter
Second qQuaner. . ...
Thirdquarter. . ... . i
Fourthquarter......... ... ... ... ... ... .........

2004
First quarter
Secondquanter. ............ i
Thirdquarter. . ... .. .. . i
Fourthquarter........ ... ... ... i,

(1) Excludes the market adjustment on securities available for sale.
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Years ended December 31,

Percent
2004 2003 Change
................. $ 105,024 102,752 2.21%
................. 56,540 53,031 6.62
................. 761 713 6.73
................. .753 .704 6.96
................. 3.02 3.06 (1.31)
................. 2,828,195 2,710,175 4.35
................. 1,176,856 1,275,023 (7.70)
................. 2,474,179 2,340,827 5.70
................. 223,719 225,045 (0.59)
................. 2.00% 1.96 2.04
................. 26.65 26.21 1.68
................. 7.74 7.53 2.79
................. 17.08 16.54 3.33
................. 18.37 17.82 3.09
................. (.02) 39 —
................. 15.6x 15.0x 4.00
................. 38.78 38.33 (1.17)
................. 78.83 83.98 (6.13)
Tangible Range of Stock

Basic  Diluted  Cash  Book Price
Earnings Earnings Dividend Value High Low
$.178 A75 150 3.12 11.40 9.50
.180 .178 150 3.16 11.75 9.72
192 .189 150 3.14 13.47 10.81
.163 .161 150 3.06 1425 12.25
191 .188 1150 3.15 14.00 12.64
193 191 .150 2.89 13.79 11.87
.205 .203 .150 3.02 13.21 1217
72 A7 150 3.02 1418 12.80
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Growing, Moving Forward...
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TrustCo Mission Statement:

TrustCo will be the low cost provider of high quality services to our customers in the
communities we serve and return to our owners an above average return on their investment.

a
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President’s Message

Dear Shareholder:

We had another record year in 2004 at TrustCo. Although others in our industry did well,
few can match the TrustCo record of sustained superior performance. We are grateful to
our shareholders, customers, Board of Directors and employees for their strong support
and enthusiasm.

During 2004, measurements that drive shareholder value continued in the right direction
with net income at $56.5 million, up a significant 6.6% over 2003. In 2004, return on average
equity (ROE), our most important measurement, was 26.65% up from 26.21% in 2003.
TrustCo’s enviable five-year ROE was 25.66% and our plans call for a 26% ROE in 2005.

TrustCo’s world-class efficiency ratio was 38.8% for 2004. This measurement is one of
the best tests to identify effective expense controls and productivity.

We have often discussed our philosophy of returning excess capital to our shareholders
while maintaining sufficient capital to meet the regulatory definition of “well capitalized.”
Therefore, in 2004, 78.8% of net income was paid to shareholders in cash dividends.

TrustCo’s branch office expansion program continues. In 2004 we opened offices in
Osprey and Sarasota, our first two branches on the west coast of Florida. Our expansion
downstate is also on track with the opening of our Wappingers Falls office, our third in
Dutchess County. We continue to find opportunities in Upstate New York, and in 2004,
we opened branches in Valatie and Slingerlands. During 2004 we also relocated our
Rotterdam Square office to a more visible location within the mall. Our plans call for
aggressive branch expansion in 2005, targeting the Capital Region, downstate New York/
northern New Jersey and Florida.

The quality of the loan portfolio is excellent, and our allowance for loan loss ratios and
other asset quality indicators remain strong.

We note with sorrow the passing of Barton A. Andreoli, a director of TrustCo Bank Corp NY
and Trustco Bank since 1993. Mr. Andreoli was an enthusiastic and contributing member of
several committees, and will be missed.

There were a number of senior staff changes during 2004. Kevin M. Curley and Robert
M. Leonard were elevated to Administrative Vice Presidents; and Michael J. Lofrumento
and Patrick M. Canavan were named Vice Presidents. | believe that the TrustCo manage-
ment team has the experience and ability to continue to lead the Company along the road
of accomplishment and prosperity in the future.
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President’s Message (continued)

2004 was a year in which average assets of $2.82 billion grew by $118.0 million, an
increase of 4.4%. This solid performance will provide us with investment opportunities
going forward. Our loan portfolio grew by 6.7% during 2004 with continued emphasis
on the retail side of the product mix.

Our Trust Department, which currently manages assets in excess of $392 million, has
ambitious expectations for 2005 and continues moving forward.

Our community needs have expanded, and TrustCo has responded appropriately. Our
staff involvement with hundreds of nonprofit agencies throughout our market area, coupled
with financial support from TrustCo, has received increased public awareness.

We are enthusiastic about TrustCo’s future. It is our intention at every level in the Company
to carry our past success into the future. Our products are tailored to the needs of our
community; we have a solid team to deliver them, and a management style that can adapt
almost immediately to marketplace changes.

We are sure the combination of management, products, financial strength and the
enthusiastic commitment of the Board of Directors will bring us continued success
in the years ahead, whatever the banking environment.

Sincerely,

y a4

Robert J. McCormick
President & Chief Executive Officer
TrustCo Bank Corp NY
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

The financial review which follows will focus on
the factors affecting the financial condition and
results of operations of TrustCo Bank Corp NY (the
“Company”, “TrustCo” or the “Bank”), and Trustco
Bank during 2004 and, in summary form, the two
preceding years. Net interest income and net interest
margin are presented in this discussion on a taxable
equivalent basis. Balances discussed are daily
averages unless otherwise described. The

+ a reduction in the provision for loan losses from
$1.2 million in 2003 to $450,000 in 2004 and,

« the recognition of net securities gains of $13.7
million in 2004 compared to $9.8 million recorded
in 2003

Return on Equity

Q,
consolidated financial statements and related notes 28% 26.659%
and the quarterly reports to shareholders for 2004 26.08% 26.21% i
should be read in conjunction with this review. 26— ' ;
Certain amounts in years prior to 2004 have been |
reclassified to conform with the 2004 presentation. 24 |
Overview oo |
TrustCo recorded net income of $56.5 million or
$0.753 of diluted earnings per share for the year 20
ended December 31, 2004, compared to $53.0 million .
or $0.704 per share for the year ended December 31, a
2003. This represents an increase of 6.6% in net 18 —
income between 2003 and 2004. }
During 2004, the following had a significant effect 16 '
on net income:
» an increase of $3.6 million in net interest income 14
compared to 2003, as an increase in the average
balance of interest earning assets of $123.0 million 12 i '
was partially offset by a reduction of nine basis 2002 2003 2004
points (“bp”) in the net interest margin,
MIX OF AVERAGE EARNING ASSETS
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 Components of
vs. VS, Total Earning Assets
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Loans, net of uneamed income .. $1,176,856 1,275,023 1,512,448 (98,167) (237,425) 43.1% 48.9% 58.6
Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasuries and agencies . . 714,603 506,608 185,462 207,995 321,146 26.2 19.4 7.2
States and political subdivisions .. 168,723 203,718 222,696 (34,995) (18,978) 6.2 7.8 8.6
Mortgage-backed securities and
collaterized mortgage obligations 149,298 60,248 62,494 89,050 (2,2486) 5.5 2.3 2.4
Other ..................... 25,221 63,331 97,404 (38,110)  (34,073) 0.9 2.5 3.8
Total securities available
forsale .................. 1,057,845 833,905 568,056 223,940 265,849 38.8 32.0 22.0
Federal funds sold and other
short-term investments .. ... 494,579 497,364 498,875 (2,785) (1,511)  18.1 19.1 19.4
Total earningassets .. ........... $2,729,280 2,606,292 2,579,379 122,988 26,913 100.0% 1000 100.0
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TrustCo has performed well with respect to a
number of key performance ratios during 2004
and 2003, including:

* return on average equity of 26.65% for 2004

and 26.21% for 2003,

» return on average assets of 2.00% for 2004
and 1.96% for 2003, and

+ an efficiency ratio of 38.78% for 2004 and
38.33% for 2003.

TrustCo’s operations focus on providing high
quality service to the communities served by the
branch-banking network. The financial resuits for
the Company are influenced by economic events
that affect those communities, as well as national
economic trends, primarily interest rates, affecting
the entire banking industry.

TrustCo continues to open new branch locations.
During 2004 five new branches were added to the
franchise — two branches were opened on the west
coast of Florida, one in Dutchess County, New York
and two new branches in the Capital District region.
The new branch locations continue the plan established
several years ago to expand the franchise to areas
experiencing economic growth. In 2005, this strategy
will lead to the opening of seven to ten new branches.

Management believes that expanding into central
and western Florida and the downstate region of
New York has been a success. The new branches
have all of the same products and features found at
our other locations. With a combination of competitive
rates, excellent service and convenient locations,
management believes that the new branches will
attract deposit and loan customers and be a
welcome addition to these communities.

Overall, 2004 was marked by growth in each of
the key elements of performance. Deposits ended
2004 at $2.53 hillion, an increase of $107.3 million
from the prior year, and the locan portfolio grew to a
total of $1.19 billion, an increase of $77.2 million
over the 2003 year end balance. Likewise, the balance
of overnight investments in federal funds sold and
other short term investments increased to $642.2
million at year end from $355.3 million at year end
2003. This increase in federal funds sold and other
short-term investments is described below in the
sections on Securities Available for Sale and Federal
Funds Sold and Other Short-term Investments.
Offsetting these increases was a reduction of $280.9
million in the year end balance of securities available
for sale. The increase in deposits and loans reflect
the success the Company has had in attracting new

LOAN PORTFOLIO
(doliars in thousands) As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Commercial. ...................... $ 193,188 15.6% $190,501 16.4% $199,795 14.1%
Real estate - construction............ 20,148 1.6 7,476 0.6 7,252 0.5
Real estate - mortgage. ... ......... 822,103 66.3 779,227 67.0 1,059,035 74.4
Home equity lines of credit. . . ........ 191,242 15.4 171,078 14.7 139,294 9.8
installmentloans. .................. 13,749 11 14,365 1.3 17,465 1.2
Totalloans. ....................... 1,240,430 100.0% 1,162,647 100.0% 1,422,841 100.0%
Less: Unearned income. ............. 365 381 540
Allowance for loan losses. ... ... 49,384 48,739 52,558
Netloans............. ........... $1,190,681 $1,113,527 $1,369,743
Average Balances
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Commercial ............. ... $ 189,179 16.1% §$ 199,729 15.7% $ 198,566 13.1% §$ 195152 12.8% $179,952 12.9%
Real estate - construction ... .. 12,430 1.1 6,684 05 9,752 0.7 14,526 1.0 18,338 1.3
Real estate - mortgage ....... 780,777 66.3 899,415 705 1,156,779 764 1161521 764 1,040,127 745
Home equity lines of credit . ... 181,948 15.4 155,185 12.2 129,847 8.6 125,778 83 134,459 9.6
Installmentloans ..... ...... 12,895 1.1 14,460 1.1 18,181 1.2 22,687 15 23,471 1.7
Totalloans ................ 1,177,229 100.0% 1,275,473 100.0% 1,513,125 100.0% 1,519,664 100.0% 1,396,347 100.0%
Less: Unearned income ...... 373 450 677 896 933
Allowance for loan losses . . 49,299 51,311 56,525 57,398 56,362
Netloans ................. $1,127,557 1,223,712 1,455,923 1,461,370 1,339,052
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis onsinued

Taxable Equivalent
Net Interest Income (dollars in millions)

$125
100 — :
75
50 !
25

2002 2003 2004
customers to the Bank both in new branch locations
as well as overall. Management believes that
TrustCo's success is predicated on providing core
banking services to a wider number of customers.
The decrease in the year end balance of securities
available for sale is reflective of decisions made by
management near year end to create additional
liquidity (federal funds sold and other short-term
investments) in the event interest rates begin to rise
in 2005. On average for 2004 the balance of securities
available for sale was $1.06 billion compared to
$833.9 million in 2003. Sales of investment securities
resulted in net gains of $13.7 million in 2004 and
$9.8 million in 2003. These net gains were primarily
from the portfolic of local bank stocks purchased
over the years in connection with unsuccessful
merger opportunities. For 2005 management does
not anticipate that security gains will be as significant.
Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale
were $7.4 million at December 31, 2004, including
$4.4 million of unrealized gains on equity securities.

Asset/Liability Management

In managing its balance sheet, TrustCo utilizes
funding and capital sources within sound credit,
investment, interest rate, and liquidity risk guidelines
established by management and approved by the
Board of Directors. Loans and securities (including
federal funds sold) are the Company’s primary
earning assets. Average interest earning assets
were 96.5% and 96.2% of average total assets
for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

TrustCo, through its management of liabilities,
attempts to provide stable and flexible sources of
funding within established liquidity and interest rate
risk guidelines. This is accomplished through core
deposit banking products offered within the markets
served by the Company. TrustCo does not actively
seek to attract out-of-area deposits or so called
hot money; rather the Company focuses on core
relationships with both depositors and borrowers.

TrustCo’s abjectives in managing its balance sheet

are to limit the sensitivity of net interest income to
actual or potential changes in interest rates and to
enhance profitability through strategies that should
provide sufficient reward for understood and controlled
risk. The Company is deliberate in its effort to maintain
adequate liquidity under prevailing and projected
economic conditions and to maintain an efficient and
appropriate mix of core deposit relationships.

The Company relies on traditional banking
investment instruments and its large base of core
deposits to help in asset/liability management.

Interest Rates

TrustCo competes with other financial service
providers based upon many factors including quality
of service, convenience of operations, and rates paid
on deposits and charged on loans. The absolute level
of interest rates, changes in rates, and customers’
expectations with respect to the direction of interest
rates have a significant impact on the volume of loan
and deposit originations in any particular year.

Interest rates have remained at relatively low levels
during 2004. One of the most important interest rates
used to control national economic policy is the
“federal funds” rate. This is the interest rate utilized
within the banking system for overnight borrowings
for institutions with the highest credit quality rating.
The federal funds rate increased by a total of 125
basis points during 2004 from 1.00% for the first half
of the year to 2.25% by year-end. During this same
time period the 10 year treasury bond did not change
consistently with the increased federal funds rate.
The 10 year treasury rate was 4.25% as of year end
2003 and 4.22% as of year end 2004. The Federal
Reserve has indicated its intention to continue to
monitor economic expansion in the United States
economy which may require additional increases in
the federal funds rate.

These changes in interest rates have an effect on
the Company relative to the interest income on loans,
securities and federal funds sold as well as on interest
expense on deposits and borrowings. Residential
real estate loans and longer-term investments are
most affected by the changes in longer term market
interest rates such as the 10 year treasury. The
federal funds sold portfolio and other short term
investments are affected primarily by changes in the
federal funds target rate. Deposit interest rates are
most affected by short term market interest rates.
Also, changes in interest rates have an effect on the
recorded balance of the securities available for sale
portfolio, which is recorded at market value. Generally,
as interest rates increase the market value of the
securities available for sale portfolio will decrease.

The principal loan product for TrustCo is residential
real estate loans. Interest rates on new residential
real estate loan ariginations are also influenced by
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITIES OF LOANS TO CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2004

After 1 Year
In 1 Year But Within After
or Less 5 Years 5 Years Total
Commercial. . ... o $ 80,850 67,377 44 961 193,188
Real estate construction. .. ............. ... ......... 20,148 — — 20,148
Total .. e 100,998 67,377 44,961 213,336
Predeterminedrates. . ............. ... . .. 25,518 67,226 44,961 137,705
Floatingrates . ........coi i 75,480 151 - 75,631
Total .. $ 100,998 67,377 44,961 213,336

the rates established by secondary market participants
such as Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. Because
TrustCo is a portfolio lender and does not sell loans
into the secondary market, the Company establishes
rates that management determines are appropriate
in light of the long-term nature of residential real
estate loans while remaining competitive with the
secondary market rates.

Earning Assets

Average earning assets during 2004 were
$2.73 bitlion, which was an increase of $123.0 million
from the prior year. This increase was primarily the
result of growth in the average balance of securities
available for sale of $223.9 million offset by a
$98.2 million decrease in the average balance of
loans. These changes resulted from mortgage loan
customers refinancing with other financial institutions
and reinvestment of the loan payoffs into securities.

Total average assets were $2.83 billion for 2004
and $2.71 billion for 2003.

The table “Mix of Average Earning Assets” shows
how the mix of the earning assets has changed over
the last three years. While the growth in earning assets
is critical to improved profitability, changes in the mix
also have a significant impact on income levels, as
discussed below.

Loans

Average loans decreased $98.2 million during 2004.
Interest income on the loan portfolio also decreased
to $75.2 million in 2004 from $87.7 million in 2003.
The average yield decreased from 6.88% in 2003
to 6.39% in 2004.

Historically, management believes, TrustCo has
distinguished itself in the Upstate New York region
as one of the principal originators of residential real
estate loans. Through marketing and pricing and a
customer-friendly service delivery network, TrustCo
has attempted to limit the amount of mortgage loans

refinanced with other institutions. The uniqueness of
the loan products was highlighted by TrustCo in an
effort to differentiate them from those of other lenders.
Specifically, low closing costs, no escrow or private
mortgage insurance and quick loan approvals were
identified and marketed. The fact that the Company
helds mortgages in its loan portfolio rather than
selling them into secondary markets was also
highlighted. While management believes this policy
ultimately benefits the borrower, it can result in
slightly higher rates as compared to the local
competition. Despite these efforts, certain existing
and potential borrowers chose to refinance/originate
their loans with institutions offering lower rates,
resulting in a decline in the balance of this portfolio.
The average balance of real estate loans was
$899.4 million in 2003 and $780.8 million in 2004.
Income on real estate loans decreased to $52.7
million in 2004 from $64.9 million in 2003. The yield
on the portfolio decreased to 6.69% for 2004 from
7.19% in 2003 due to general changes in retail rates
in the marketplace. Though there remains debate,
the Company believes the general tenor of the
economy is for improvement, and consequently,
increases in long-term interest rates. As a result, the
significant amount of refinancing that has occurred
during 2003 and 2004 may not continue in 2005.
Assuming a slowdown in refinancing, TrustCo
anticipates that the low closing cost and other unique
features of its mortgage loan products may once
again attract customers.

Real estate loans at December 31, 2004 were
$822.1 million compared to $779.2 million at year
end 2003, an increase of $42.9 million. This increase
occurred primarily in the second half of 2004 as the
level of refinancing activity lessened.

The overwhelming majority of TrustCo’s real estate
loans are secured by properties within the Bank's
market area. During 2004, management continued
its established practice of retaining all new loan
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

originations in the Bank’s portfolio rather than selling
them in the secondary market.

Average commercial loans of $189.2 million in
2004 decreased by $10.6 million from $199.7 million
in 2003. The average vield on the commercial loan
portfolio decreased to 6.88% for 2004 compared to
7.26% for 2003. This resulted in income on commercial
loans of $14.7 million in 2003 and $13.4 million in 2004.

TrustCo strives to maintain strong asset quality in
all segments of its loan portfolio, especially commercial
loans. Competition for commercial loans continues
to be very intense in the Bank’s market region. The
Bank competes with large money center and regional
banks as weli as with smaller locally based banks
and thrifts. Over the last several years, competition
for commercial loans has intensified as smaller
banks and thrifts have tried to develop commercial
loan portfolios.

TrustCo’'s commercial lending activities are focused
on balancing the Company’s commitment to meeting
the credit needs of businesses in its market area with
the necessity of managing its credit risk. In accordance
with these goals, the Company has consistently
emphasized the origination of loans within its market
area. The portfolio contains no foreign loans, nor does
it contain any significant concentrations of credit to
any single borrower or industry. The commercial loan
portfolio reflects the diversity of businesses found in
the Capital Region’s economy. Light manufacturing,
retail, service, and real estate related business are a
few examples of the types of businesses located in
the Company’s market area.

TrustCo has a leadership position in the home
equity credit line product in its market area. TrustCo
was one of the first financial institutions in the Capital
Region to aggressively market and originate this
product, and, management believes, has developed
significant expertise with respect to its risks and
rewards. During 2004, the average balance of home
equity credit lines was $181.9 million, an increase
from $155.2 million in 2003. The home equity credit
line product has developed into a significant business
line for most financial services companies. Trustco
Bank competes with both regional and national
concerns for these lines of credit and faces stiff
competition with respect to interest rates, closing
costs, and customer service for these loans. TrustCo
continuously reviews changes made by competitors
with respect to the home equity credit line product
and adjusts its offerings to remain competitive. The
average yield increased to 4.23% for 2004 from
4.01% in 2003. This resulted in interest income
on home equity credit lines of $7.7 million in 2004,
compared to $6.2 million in 2003.

The average balance of installment loans, net
of unearned income, decreased to $12.5 million
in 2004 from $14.0 million in 2003. The yield on
installment loans decreased to 11.63% in 2004,
resulting in interest income of $1.5 million.

Securities available for sale: The portfolio of
securities available for sale is designed to provide
a stable source of interest income and liquidity. The
portfolio is also managed by the Company to take
advantage of changes in interest rates. The
securities available for sale portfolio is managed
under a policy detailing the types, duration, and
interest rates acceptable in the portfolio.

The designation of “available for sale” is made at
the time of purchase, based upon management’s
intent to hold the securities for an indefinite period
of time. However, these securities are available for
sale in response to changes in market interest rates,
related changes in prepayment risk, needs for
liquidity, or changes in the availability of and yield
on alternative investments.

At December 31, 2004, securities available for sale
amounted to $896.0 million, compared to $1.18 billion
at year end 2003. As previously discussed, the
decrease in the year end balance of securities
available for sale is reflective of decisions made by
management near year end to create additional
liquidity in the event interest rates begin to rise in
2005. For 2004, the average balance of securities
available for sale was $1.06 billion with an average yield
of 5.85%, compared to an average balance in 2003 of
$833.9 million with an average yield of 6.01%. The
taxable equivalent income earned on the securities
portfolio in 2004 was $61.9 million, compared to
$50.2 million earned in 2003. Yields earned on
securities available for sale were down slightly for
2004 compared to 2003 due primarily to additional
investments made in the mortgage-backed securities
and collateralized mortgage obligations portfolio.
These additional investments were made at relatively
low interest rates as compared to the remainder of the
portfolio and have an anticipated average life of less
than 4 years.

Increases in the 2004 average balance of securities
available for sale were the result of efforts to invest
the funds from loan refinancings and deposit inflows
into investment securities available for sale. The
interest rates on the securities purchased during the
year were attractive as compared to investing the
funds in overnight federal funds and other short term
investments and compared to the Company’s overall
cost of funding. Federal funds sold and other short-
term investments yielded an average rate of return
of 1.35% for the year. Interest income was positively
affected by investing the funds in the securities
available for sale portfolio at significantly higher
interest rates. The additional interest earned on these
securities helped offset lower income in the loan
portfolio. All security purchases are made in
accordance with management’s long standing
investment policies. Management believes these
additional investments offered the best combination
of yield and credit protection. Sales of securities
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

available for sale were made at year end in anticipation
of rising interest rates and the availability of higher
yielding bonds in 2005.

During 2004, TrustCo recognized approximately
$13.7 million of net gains from securities transactions,
compared to approximately $9.8 million in 2003. The
Company recognized these transactions in response
to lower interest rates in the marketplace, which had
the effect of increasing the value of these securities.
Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale
were $7.4 million at December 31, 2004, including
$4.4 million of unrealized gain on equity securities.
At year end 2004, TrustCo continued to have
significant liguidity in the form of $642.2 million of
federal funds sold and other short-term investments.

TrustCo has not invested in any exotic investment
products such as interest rate swaps, forward
placement contracts, or other instruments commonly
referred to as derivatives. By actively managing a
portfolio of high quality securities, TrustCo can meet
the objectives of asset/liability management and
liquidity, while at the same time producing a
reasonably predictable earnings stream.

Securities available for sale are recorded at their
fair value, with any unrealized gains or losses, net of
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taxes, recognized as a component of shareholders’
equity. Average balances of securities available for
sale are stated at amortized cost. At December 31,
2004 and 2003, the market value of TrustCo’s
portfolio of securities available for sale carried net
unrealized gains of approximately $7.4 million and
$35.0 million, respectively.

Maturity and call dates of securities: Many
of the securities in the investment portfolio have a
call date in addition to the stated maturity date. Call
dates allow the issuer to redeem the bonds prior to
maturity at specified dates and at predetermined
prices. Normally, securities are redeemed at the call
date when the issuer can reissue the security at a
lower interest rate. Therefore, for cash flow, liquidity
and interest rate management purposes, it is
important to monitor both maturity dates and call
dates. The table below details the portfolio of
securities available for sale by both maturity date
and call date as of December 31, 2004. Mortgage-
backed securities are reported using an estimate
of average life; equity securities are excluded.

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE
(dollars in thousands)

As of December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Amortized Market Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
U.S. Treasuries and agencies ............ $ 521,578 517,561 863,528 863,659 224576 230,428
States and political subdivisions .. .......... 147,988 154,939 182,118 191,727 223,873 235,495
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations .. .......... . ..... 201,579 201,623 64,718 66,322 49,537 52,591
Other ... 685 685 685 685 26,068 26,138
Total debt securities available forsale ..... 871,830 874,808 1,111,049 1,122,393 524,054 544,652
Equity securities ...... ... ... oo 16,741 21,181 30,880 54,533 83,246 108,511
Total securities available forsale ......... $888,571 895,989 1,141,929 1,176,926 607,300 653,163
SECURITIES PORTFOLIO MATURITY AND CALL DATE DISTRIBUTION
Debt securities available for sale:
(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2004
Based on Based on
Final Maturity Call Date
Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value
Within T year .. ... . e $ 24,653 25,066 560,188 557,026
TloByears .. . e 169,344 169,209 187,204 188,799
Sto10years ... . 40,075 39,992 117,400 121,567
Ar 10 YRAIS ... i e 637,758 640,541 7,038 7,416
Total debt securities available forsale .................... .. $ 871,830 874,808 871,830 874,808
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federal funds sold and other short-term investments
portfolio is significantly affected by changes in the
target federal funds rate as are virtually all interest
sensitive instruments.

The year end balance of federal funds sold and
other short term investments was $642.2 million for
2004 compared to $355.3 million for year end 2003.
The year end balance for 2004 is significantly
higher than the average balance for the year of
$494.6 million due to the proceeds of sales of
securities available for sale executed near year end.
These proceeds had not been reinvested in either
the loan or securities available for sale portfolio by
December 31, 2004. Management anticipates

The table, “Securities Portfolio Maturity
Distribution and Yield,” distributes the securities
available for sale portfolio as of December 31, 2004,
based on the final maturity of the securities. Mortgage-
backed securities are presented in the time period of
their estimated average life, and equity securities are
excluded. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because of securities prepayments and the
right of certain issuers 1o call or prepay their obligations
without penalty.

Federal funds sold and other short-term
investments: During 2004, the average balance of
federal funds sold and other short-term investments

was $494.6 million, a slight decrease from $497.4
million in 2003. The average rate earned on these
assets was 1.35% in 2004 and 1.14% in 2003.

TrustCo utilizes this category of earning assets as

evaluating the overall level of the federal funds sold
and other short term investments portfolio for 2005
and will make appropriate adjustments based upon
market opportunities and interest rates.

a means of maintaining strong liquidity as interest
rates change.

During 2004, the target federal funds rate set by
the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC)
changed significantly as described previously. The

Funding Sources

TrustCo utilizes various traditional sources of funds
to support its asset portfolio. The table, “Mix of Average
Sources of Funding,” presents the various categories

SECURITIES PORTFOLIO MATURITY DISTRIBUTION ANDYIELD
Debt securities available for sale:

(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2004

Maturing:
After 1 After 5
Within But Within But Within After
1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years Total

U.S. Treasuries and agencies :

Amortizedcost .......... ... ..., $ 500 15,000 10,000 496,078 521,578

Marketvalue .................... 500 14,991 10,076 491,994 517,561

Weighted average yield ........... 1.62% 3.00 6.00 5.41 5.35
States and political subdivisions

Amortizedcost ........... ... $ 505 1,246 5,496 140,741 147,988

Marketvalue . ................... 505 1,250 5,608 147,576 154,939

Weighted average yield ........... 4.59% 4.60 5.55 5.35 5.35
Mortgage-backed securities and

collateralized mortgage obligations

Amortizedcost ............ ... ... $ 23,648 152,463 24,529 939 201,579

Marketvalue . ................... 24,061 152,333 24,258 971 201,623

Weighted averageyield ........... 8.34% 4.70 4.51 6.91 512
Other ’

Amortizedcost .................. $ — 635 50 — 685

Marketvalue .................... — 635 50 —_ 685

Weighted average vield ........... —% 442 5.50 — 4.50
Total debt securities available for sale

Amortizedcost . ... L. $ 24,653 169,344 40,075 637,758 871,830

Marketvalue ... ................. 25,066 169,209 39,992 640,541 874,808

Weighted averageyield ........... 8.13% 4.55 5.02 5.40 5.29

Weighted average yields have not been adjusted for any tax-equivalent factor. U.S. Treasuries and agencies maturing after 10 years have final maturities of less
than 15 years. States and political subdivisions maturing after 10 years have final maturities of less than 20 years.
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AVERAGE BALANCES, YIELDS AND NET INTEREST MARGINS

{dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

interest Interest Interest
Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average
Balance Expense  Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Assets
Loans, net of unearned income . . ... ..... $1,176,856 75,232  6.39% 1,275,023 87,669 6.88% 1,512,448 112,085 7.41%
Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasuries and agencies ......... 714,603 39,796 5.57 506,608 25,989 513 185,462 11,669 6.29
States and political subdivisions . . ... .. 168,723 13,302 7.88 203,718 16,131 7.92 222,696 17,917 8.05
Mortgage-backed securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations .. 149,298 7,032 47N 60,248 3,618 6.01 62,494 4,483 7.17
Other .......... ... .. ............ 25,221 1,744 6.92 63,331 4,430 7.00 97,404 6,697 6.88
Total securities available forsale ... .. .. 1,057,845 61,874 5.85 833,905 50,168 6.01 568,056 40,766 7.18
Federal funds sold and other short-term
investments .................... 494,579 6,675 1.35 497364 5,654 1.14 498,875 8458 1.70
Total interest earning assets .......... 2,729,280 143,781 5.27% 2,606,292 143,491 5.50% 2,579,379 161,309 6.25%
Allowance for loanlosses ............. (49,299) (561,311) (56,525)
Cash and noninterest earning assets .. ... 148,214 155,194 ‘ 170,651
Totalassets ...t $2,828,195 2,710,175 2,693,505

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Interest bearing deposits:

Interest bearing checking accounts .... § 328,804 1,586 0.48% 320,179 1,678 052% 306,856 3,124 1.02%
Savings ...l 809,438 7,968 0.98 759,308 8,795 1.16 701966 12,758 1.82
Time deposits and money markets . . ... 1,123,474 28,223 2.51 1,072,078 29,370 2.74 1,010,529 39,268 3.89
Total interest bearing deposits ........ 2,261,716 37,777 1.67 2,151,565 39,843 185 2,019,351 55150 273
Short-term borrowings . .............. 100,855 972 0.96 107,799 877 0.81 210,363 2,840 1.35
Long-termdebt . ........ ... ... ..., 151 8 5.40 326 19 580 510 30 59
Total interest bearing liabilities ........ 2,362,722 38,757 1.64% 2,259,690 40,739 1.80% 2,230,224 58,020 2.60%
Demand deposits .................... 212,463 189,262 193,089
Other liabilities .................... .. 29,291 36,178 55,229
Shareholders’equity .................. 223,719 225,045 214,963
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . $2,828,195 2,710,175 2,693,505
Net interestincome .................... 105,024 102,752 103,289
Netinterestspread .................... 3.63% 3.70% 3.65%
Net interest margin (net interest income
to total interest earning assets) .. ........ 3.85 3.94 4.00

Portions of income earned on certain commercial loans, U.S. Government obligations, obligations of states and political subdivisions, and
equity securities are exempt from federal and/or state taxation. Appropriate adjustments have been made to reflect the equivalent amount of
taxable income that would have been necessary to generate an equal amount of after tax income. Federal and New York State tax rates used
to calculate income on a tax equivalent basis were 35.0% and 7.5% for 2004, and 2003, and 35.0% and 8.0%, for 2002. The average balances
of securities available for sale were calculated using amortized costs for these securities. Included in the average balance of shareholders’
equity is $19.5 million, $22.7 million, and $26.1 million in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively, net of unrealized appreciation, net of tax, in the
available for sale securities portfolio. Nonaccrual loans are included in average loans.
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of funds used and the corresponding average
balances for each of the last three years.

Deposits: Average total deposits (including time
depaosits greater than $100 thousand) were $2.47
billion in 2004, compared to $2.34 billion in 2003,
an increase of $133.4 million. Increases were noted
in all categories of accounts. The average balance
of interest bearing checking accounts increased by
$8.6 million to $328.8 million in 2004. Money market
accounts had an average balance of $157.4 million
in 2004 compared to $149.5 million in 2003. Savings
account balances increased from $759.3 million in
2003 to $809.4 million in 2004, an increase of 6.6%.
Time deposits increased on average by $43.5 million
and demand deposits increased by $23.2 million
during 2004 compared to 2003.

The increase in deposits reflects the impact of
new branches opened over the last several years,
and the continuing focus at TrustCo on providing
core banking services better, faster and cheaper
than its competitors. Management believes that
another contributing factor is the moving of funds by
customers away from the stock and bond markets
back into the banking system. TrustCo, with its
expanding branch network, is well positioned to
attract these new deposits.

The overall cost of interest bearing deposits was
1.67% in 2004 compared to 1.85% in 2003. The
increase in the average balance of interest bearing
deposits, coupled with an 18 basis point decrease
in the average cost, resulted in a decrease of
approximately $2.1 million in interest expense
to $37.8 million in 2004.

The Company strives to maintain competitive
rates on deposit accounts and to attract customers

through a combination of competitive interest rates,
quality customer service, and convenient banking
locations. In this fashion, management believes,
TrustCo is able to attract deposit customers looking
for a long-term banking relationship, and to cross
sell banking services utilizing the deposit account
relationship as the starting point. As a result of
changing to a federal savings bank charter in 2002,
TrustCo no longer competitively bids on new
deposits from states and political subdivisions.
Therefore, the average balance of these deposits
has decreased significantly since that time.
Management believes that the benefits of the federal
savings bank charter outweigh the loss of these
municipal deposits.

MATURITY OF TIME DEPOSITS
OVER $100 THOUSAND
(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2004

Under3months ....................... $ 16,592

Jto6months ......... ... ... ... ... 19,175
6to12months ....................... 33,833
Overi2months ....................... 108,421
Total ... ... $178,021

Other funding sources: The Company had
$107.8 million of average short-term borrowings
outstanding during 2003 compared to $100.9 million
in 2004. The average cost of short-term borrowings
was 0.81% in 2003 and 0.96% in 2004. This resulted
in interest expense of approximately $1.0 million

in 2004.

Capital Resources
Consistent with its long-term goal of operating a
sound and profitable financial organization, TrustCo

MIX OF AVERAGE SOURCES OF FUNDING

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 Components of

vS. VS. Total Funding
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Demand deposits . ................ $ 212,463 189,262 193,089 23,201 (3,827) 83% 7.7 8.0

Retail deposits:

Savings ....... i 809,438 759,308 701,966 50,130 57,342 31.4 31.0 29.0
Time deposits under $100 thousand . . 789,211 767,505 766,133 21,706 1,372 30.6 31.3 316
Interest bearing checking accounts . . 328,804 320,179 306,856 8,625 13,323 12.8 131 127
Money market deposits ........... 157,418 149,520 117,478 7,898 32,042 6.1 6.1 4.8
Total retail deposits .............. 2,084,871 1,996,512 1,892,433 88,359 104,079 80.9 81.5 78.1
Total core deposits .. ............ 2,297,334 2,185,774 2,085522 111,560 100,252  89.2 89.2 86.1
Time deposits over $100 thousand .. .. 176,845 155,053 126,918 21,792 28,135 6.9 6.4 52
Short-term borrowings . . ............ 100,855 107,799 210,363 (6,944) (102,564) 3.9 4.4 8.7
Long-termdebt ................... 151 326 510 (175) (184) —_— — —
Total purchased liabilites ......... 277,851 263,178 337,791 14,673 (74,613) 10.8 10.8 13.9
Total sources of funding .......... $2,575,185 2,448,952 2,423,313 126,233 25,639 100.0% 100.0 100.0
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AVERAGE DEPOSITS BY TYPE OF DEPOSITOR

(dollars in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Individuals, partnerships and corporations ............ $2,453,843 2,318,424 2,150,986 1,947,700 1,922,399
US.Government . ... . . . 70 73 35 83 79
States and political subdivisions .................... 5,539 9,802 48,049 64,811 49,651
Other (certified and official checks, etc.) .............. 14,727 12,528 13,370 15,056 13,674
Total average deposits by type of depositor . .. ... .. .. $2,474179 2,340,827 2,212,440 2,027,650 1,985,803

strives to maintain strong capital ratios and to qualify
as a well capitalized bank in accordance with federal
regulatory requirements. Historically, most of the
Company's capital requirements have been provided
through retained earnings generated. New issues of
equity securities have not been required to support
the Company’s growth.

A basic element of TrustCo’s operating philosophy
is that the Company will not retain excess capital.
Capital generated by the Company that is in excess
of the levels considered by management to be
necessary for the safe and sound operation of the
Company has been distributed to the shareholders
in the form of cash dividends. Consequently, the

philosophy has led to a dividend payout ratio of 78.8%
of net income in 2004, 84.0% for 2003 and 88.6% for
2002. These are significant payouts to the Company’s
shareholders and are considered by management
to be a prudent use of excess capital. As to the
likelihood of future dividends, it is currently anticipated
that the philosophy stated above will continue.

TrustCo's Tier 1 capital was 17.09% of risk-adjusted
assets at December 31, 2004, and 16.54% of risk-
adjusted assets at December 31, 2003. Tier 1 capital
to average assets at December 31, 2003 was 7.53%,
as compared to 7.74% at year end 2004.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Trustco Bank
met its regulators’ definition of a well capitalized

capital ratios that are maintained are adequate, in institution.
the view of management, but not excessive. This
VOLUME AND YIELD ANALYSIS
(dollars in thousands) 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Increase Due to Due to Increase Due to Due to
(Decrease) Volume Rate {Decrease) Volume Rate
Interest income (TE):
Federal funds sold and other
short-term investments ........ $ 1,021 (32) 1,053 (2,804) (12) (2,792)
Securities available for sale:
Taxable .............. ... ..., 14,535 12,791 1,744 11,189 14,298 (3,109)
Tax-exempt .. ................ (2,829) (2,756) (73) {(1,787) (1,507) (280)
Total securities available
forsale ................... 11,706 10,035 1,671 9,402 12,791 (3,389)
loans ... ... i (12,437) (7,553) (4,884) (24,418) (18,178) (6,238)
Total interest income ........... 290 2,450 (2,160) (17,818) (5,399) (12,419)
Interest expense:
Interest bearing checking accounts . . (92) 55 (147) (1,446) 131 (1,577)
Savings ... (827) 640 (1,467) (3,963) 980 (4,943)
Time deposits
and money markets ........... (1,147) 1,654 (2,801) (9,898) 1,722 (11,620)
Short-term borrowings ........... 95 (49) 144 (1,963) (1,087) (876)
Long-termdebt ................. 11) (10) ) (11) (1) —
Total interest expense .......... (1,982) 2,290 (4,272) (17,281) 1,735 (19,018)
Net interest income (TE) ........ $ 2,272 160 2,112 (537} (7,134) 6,597

Increases and decreases in interest income and interest expense due to both rate and volume have been allocated to the two categories
of variances (volume and rate) based on the percentage relationship of such variances to each other.
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Risk Management

The responsibility for balance sheet risk manage-
ment oversight is the function of the Asset Allocation
Committee. This committee meets monthly and
includes the executive officers of the Company as
well as other department managers as appropriate.
The meetings include a review of balance sheet
structure, formulation of strategy in light of anticipated
economic conditions, and comparison to established
guidelines to control exposures to various types
of risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is managed through a network of loan
officer authorities, review committees, loan policies,
and oversight from the senior executives of the
Company. Management follows a policy of continually
identifying, analyzing, and evaluating the credit risk
inherent in the loan portfolio. As a result of manage-
ment's ongoing reviews of the loan portfolio, loans
are placed in nonaccrual status, either due to the
delinquent status of the principal and/cr interest
payments, or based on a judgment by management
that, although payment of principal and/or interest is
current, such action is prudent. Thereafter, no interest
is taken into income unless received in cash or until
such time as the borrower demonstrates a sustained
ability to make scheduled payments of interest
and principal.

Management has also developed policies and
procedures to monitor the credit risk in relation to the
federal funds sold portfolio. TrustCo monitors the
credit rating and capital levels of the third party banks
that they sell federal funds to. Only banks with the
highest rating from the credit rating agency selected
are included in the list for federal funds transactions.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include loans in nonaccrual
status, loans that have been treated as troubled debt
restructurings, loans past due three payments or
more and still accruing interest, and foreclosed real
estate properties.

Nonperforming assets at year end 2004 totalled
$3.2 million as compared to the balance of $3.3 million
at year end 2003. All of the nonperforming assets at
year end 2004 and 2003 are nonperforming loans.
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of the total
loan portfolio were 0.26% in 2004 and 0.28% in 2003.

Included in nonperforming loans at year end 2004
were $557,000 of residential mortgage loans in
nonaccrual status as compared to none at year end
2003. There were no loans past due three payments
or more and still accruing interest at year end 2004
and 2003. Restructured loans at year end 2004 were
$2.6 million, compared to $3.3 million at year end
2003. Adherence to sound underwriting standards,
vigorous loan collection efforts and timely charge-offs

have been cornerstones of the operating philosophy
of TrustCo.

All of the $3.2 million of nonperforming loans at
December 31, 2004 are residential real estate or
retail consumer loans. A significant portion of the
charge-offs for 2004 and 2003 occurred in the
residential real estate and retail consumer loan
portfolios. During 2004, gross charge-offs of these
types of loans were $5.5 million (which represented
94% of total gross charge-offs). In 2003, charge-offs
for these types of loans were $9.2 million. In the past
several years there has been a shift of charge-offs
from the commercial loan portfolio to the residential
real estate and retail consumer loan portfolios for
several reasons, including:

« the overall emphasis within TrustCo on residential
real estate originations,
« the relatively weak economic environment in the

Upstate New York market, and
+ the relatively stagnant growth in real estate values

in many of the Company’s market areas that has

occurred since the middle of the 1990's, thereby
causing a reduction in the collateral that support
the loans.

Consumer defaults and bankruptcies had increased
over the last several years, and this led to an increase
in defaults on loans. However, beginning in 2004
the number of new bankruptcy filings in the Capital
District area decreased from the prior year as
compared to state wide trends which continue to
show increases year over year in new bankruptcy
filings. This trend, along with the decrease in
residential real estate and consumer foan charge
offs in 2004 compared to 2003, may be indicators
of future economic stability for this region and a
continued lessening of charge offs in the residential
real estate portfolio.

Ongomg portfolio management is intended to
result in early identification and disengagement from
deteriorating credits. TrustCo has a diversified loan
portfolio that includes a significant balance of
residential mortgage loans to borrowers in the
Capital Region and avoids concentrations to any
one borrower or any single industry.

Management is aware of no other loans in the
Bank’s portfolio that pose significant risk of the
eventual non-collection of principal and interest. As
of December 31, 2004, there were no other loans
classified for regulatory purposes that management
reasonably expects will materially impact future
operating results, liquidity, or capital resources.
TrustCo has no advances to borrowers or projects
located outside the United States.

TrustCo has identified nonaccrual commercial
and commercial real estate loans, as well as all
loans restructured since 1995 under a troubled
debt restructuring, as impaired loans.
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At year end 2004 and 2003, there were $2.6
and $3.1 million, respectively, of impaired loans.
The average balances of impaired loans were
$2.9 million during 2004 and $3.7 million during
2003. The Company recognized approximately
$314 thousand of interest income on these loans
in 2004 and $380 thousand in 2003.

Allowance for

$60 Loan Losses (dollars in millions)
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Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is available to absorb
losses on loans that management determines are
uncollectible. The balance of the allowance is main-
tained at a level that is, in management’s judgment,
representative of the loan portfolio’s inherent risk.
in deciding on the adequacy of the allowance
for loan losses, management reviews past due
information, historical charge-off data, and non-
performing loan activity. Also, there are a number
of other factors that are taken into consideration,
including:

+ the magnitude and nature of recent loan charge
offs,

+ the growth in the loan portfolio and the risks
associated with the absolute balance of the loan
pertfolio in relation to the economic climate in the
Bank’s business territory,

« significant growth in the level of losses associated
with bankruptcies and the time period needed to
foreclose, secure, and dispose of collateral, and

+ the relatively weak economic environment in the
Upstate New York territory over the last several
years.

The table, “Summary of Loan Loss Experience”,
includes an analysis of the changes to the allowance
for the past five years. Loans charged off in 2004
and 2003 were $5.8 million and $9.6 miltion,
respectively. Recoveries were $6.0 million in 2004
and $4.6 million in 2003. The provision recorded in
2004 was $450,000 compared to $1.2 million in 2003.
The reduction in the provision for loan losses over the
last several years is a result of the allowance for loan
losses being considered adequate by management
in relation to the overalt loan portfolio.

The level of loan charge offs decreased by
approximately $3.8 million between 2003 and 2004
while at the same time the level of nonperforming
loans remained relatively constant between the
two years. The mix of the nonperforming loans has
changed between 2003 and 2004 in that virtually all
of the increase in nonperforming loans in 2004 are
loans on a nonaccrual status. Though the economic
climate in the Upstate New York area has suffered
over the last several years, resulting in higher
bankruptcies and stagnant real estate prices, overall
economic trends in the fast two years have been
improving. As noted earlier, bankruptcies in the
Capital District area have recently decreased on a
year over year basis, and general housing prices
have been increasing. These positive trends have
helped marginal credits better manage their

NONPERFORMING ASSETS
(dollars in thousands) As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Loansin nonaccrualstatus . .................... $ 557 — 615 1,090 4,395
Loans contractually past due 3 payments or more

and still accruinginterest ....... . ... . oL —_ — — 801 896
Restructuredloans . .......... ... 2,610 3,260 4,303 5,159 6,370
Total nonperformingloans ...................... 3,167 3,260 4,918 7,050 11,661
Foreclosedrealestate .................. ... ... —_ — 86 603 1,911
Total nonperforming assets ..................... $ 3,167 3,260 5,004 7,653 13,572
Allowance forloanlosses ................... ... $ 49,384 48,739 52,558 57,203 56,298
Allowance coverage of nonperforming loans ........ 15.59x 14.95 10.69 8.11 4.83
Nonperforming loans as a % of total loans ......... 0.26% 0.28 0.35 0.45 0.79
Nonperforming assets as a % of total assets .. ... . .. 0.11 0.12 0.19 0.30 0.55
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situations and thereby keep their loans current.
Because of continued improvement in nearly all of
the indicators of the Company'’s credit quality and
management’s assessment of economic conditions
and risk, no provision for loan losses was recorded
in the fourth quarter 2004. Management will continue
to monitor these trends in determining future
provisions for loan losses in relation to charge offs,
loan recoveries and the level and trends of
nonperforming loans.

Market Risk

The Company’s principal exposure to market risk
is with respect to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk
is the potential for economic loss due to future
interest rate changes. These economic losses can
be reflected as a loss of future net interest income
and/or a loss of current market value.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure

about Market Risk

TrustCo realizes income principally from the
difference or spread between the interest earned on
loans, investments and other interest-earning assets
and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings.
Loan volume and yield, as well as the volume of and
rates on investments, deposits and borrowings are
affected by market interest rates. Additionally,
because of the terms and conditions of many of the
loan documents and deposit accounts, a change in
interest rates could also affect the projected
maturities of the loan portfolio and/or the deposit
base. Accordingly, TrustCo considers interest rate
risk to be a significant market risk for the Company.

Interest rate risk management focuses on
maintaining consistent levels of net interest income
and the fair value of capital in varying interest rate
cycles within Board-approved policy limits. Interest
rate risk management also must take into consideration,
among other factors, the Company’s overall credit,
operating income, operating cost, and capital profile.
The Asset Allocation Committee, which includes all
members of executive management and reports
guarterly to the Board of Directors, monitors and
manages interest rate risk to maintain an acceptable
level of potential change in the fair value of capital
as a result of changes in market interest rates.

The Company uses an internal model as the
primary tool to identify, quantify and project changes
in interest rates and the impact on the balance
sheet. The model utilizes assumptions with respect
to cash flows and prepayment speeds taken both
from industry sources and internally generated data
based upon historical trends in the Bank’s balance
sheet. Assumptions based on the historical behavior
of deposit rates and balances in relation to changes
in market interest rates are also incorporated into the
model. This model assumes a fair value amount with

respect to non-time deposit categories since these
deposits are part of the core deposit products of

the Company. These assumptions are inherently
uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot precisely
measure the fair value of capital or precisely predict
the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on the fair
value of capital.

Using this internal model, the fair values of capital
projections as of December 31, 2004 are referenced
below. The base case scenario shows the present
estimate of the fair value of capital assuming no
change in the operating envircnment or operating
strategies and no change in interest rates from those
existing in the marketplace as of December 31, 2004.
The table indicates the impact on the fair value of
capital assuming interest rates were to instantaneously
increase by 100 bp and 200 bp or to decrease by
100 bp. The decrease in interest rates was limited
to a 100 bp decline in rates due to the relatively low
interest rate environment at year end 2004.

Estimated Percentage of
Fair value of Capital to

As of December 31, 2004 Fair value of Assets

+200 BP 14.58%
+100 BP 16.37
Current rates 17.81
-100 BP 16.85

At December 31, 2004 the book value of capital
(excluding the market adjustment on securities
available for sale) to assets was 7.74%.

The fair value of capital is calculated as the fair
value of assets less the fair value of liabilities in the
interest ratio scenario presented. The fair value of
capital in the current rate environment is 17.81% of
assets whereas the current book value of capital to
assets is 7.74% at December 31, 2004. The
significant difference between these two capital
ratios reflects the impact that a fair value calculation
can have on the capital ratios of a company. The fair
value of capital calculations take into consideration
the fair value of deposits, including those deposits
considered core deposits, along with the fair value of
assets such as the loan portfolio.

A secondary method to identify and manage the
interest rate risk profile is the static gap analysis.
Interest sensitivity gap analysis measures the
difference between the assets and liabilities repricing
or maturing within specific time periods. An asset-
sensitive position indicates that there are more rate-
sensitive assets than rate-sensitive liabilities repricing
or maturing within specific time periods, which would
generally imply a favorable impact on net interest
income in periods of rising interest rates and a
negative impact in periods of falling rates. A liability-
sensitive position would generally imply a negative
impact on net interest income in periods of rising
rates and a positive impact in periods of falling rates.
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SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amount of loans outstanding at end of year

(less unearnedincome) . ................... $ 1,240,065 1,162,266 1,422,301 1,556,686 1,475,048
Average loans outstanding during year

(less average unearned income) . ............ 1,176,856 1,275,023 1,512,448 1,518,768 1,395,414
Balance of allowance at beginning of year ....... 48,739 52,558 57,203 56,298 55,820
Loans charged oft:

Commercial ........... ..., 335 432 997 1,084 1,951

Realestate ............................. 5,054 8,651 6,648 5,383 2,992

Instalment .. .......... .. ... .. ... ... ..., 408 515 705 561 557

Total ... .. 5,797 9,598 8,350 7,028 5,500

Recoveries of loans previously charged off:

Commercial ........... ... ... . ... .. .... 446 1,393 803 1,664 847

Realestate .............. ... ... .. ... .... 5,334 3,003 1,285 1,106 612

Instaliment . . ........... .. ... ... ... ... .. 212 183 197 223 171

Total ... ... e 5,992 4,579 2,285 2,993 1,630

Net loans charged off (recovered) .............. (195) 5,019 6,065 4,035 3,870
Provision forloanlosses .................... 450 1,200 1,420 4,840 4,114
Allowance of acquiredbank .................. - —_ — — 234
Balance of allowance atendofyear ............ $ 49,384 48,739 52,558 57,203 56,298
Net charge offs (recoveries) as a percent of average

loans outstanding during year

(less average unearned income) . ............ (.02)% .39 .40 27 .28
Allowance as a percent of loans outstanding

atendofyear ............ ... ... . ... 3.98 4.17 3.70 3.67 3.82

Static gap analysis has limitations because it cannot
measure precisely the effect of interest rate movements,
and competitive pressures on the repricing and
maturity characteristics of interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities. In addition, a significant
portion of the interest sensitive assets are fixed rate
securities with relatively long lives whereas the
interest-bearing liabilities are not subject to these
same limitations. As a result, certain assets and
liabilities may in fact reprice at different times and
at different volumes than the static gap analysis
would indicate.

The Company recognizes the relatively long-term
nature of the fixed rate residential loan portfolio. To

fund those long-term assets the Company cultivates -

long-term deposit relationships (often called core
deposits). These core deposit relationships tend to
be longer term in nature and not as susceptible to
changes in interest rates. Core deposit balances allow
the Company to take on certain interest rate risk with
respect to the asset side of the balance sheet.

The table “Interest Rate Sensitivity” presents an
analysis of the interest-sensitivity gap position at
December 31, 2004. All interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities are shown based upon
their contractual maturity or repricing date adjusted
for forecasted prepayment rates. Asset prepayment

and liability repricing pericds are selected after
considering the current rate environment, industry
prepayment and data specific to the Company. The
interest rate sensitivity table indicates that TrustCo is
asset sensitive throughout the time periods presented
and that the Company is significantly asset sensitive
for the period to five years. The affect of being asset
sensitive is that should interest rates increase, the
Company would be able to reinvest these assets at
higher rates. Conversely, should interest rates fall,
the Company would record less interest income due
to reinvesting the assets in a lower interest rate
environment.

There are several significant shortcomings
inherent in the gap analysis. For example, although
certain assets and liabilities have similar periods to
maturity or to repricing, they may react in different
degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also,
the interest rates on certain types of assets and
liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in
market interest rates, while other assets and
liabilities may lag behind changes in market interest
rates. Management takes these factors, and others,
into consideration when reviewing the Bank’s gap
position and establishing its asset/liability strategy.
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

(dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2004

Repricing in:
0-90 91-365 1-5 Qver 5 Rate
days days years years Insensitive Total
Totalassets .. ............... $1,012,796 252,015 648,099 853,277 97,647 2,863,834
Cumulative total assets . . .... .. $1,012,796 1,264,811 1,912,910 2,766,187 2,863,834
Total liabilities
and shareholders’ equity . . . . . . $ 77986 192,120 543,939 1,345,366 704,423 2,863,834
Cumulative total liabilities
and shareholders’ equity. . .. .. $ 77986 270,106 814,045 2,159,411 2,863,834
Cumulative interest
sensitivitygap . ............. $ 934,810 994,705 1,098,865 606,776
Cumulative gap as a % of interest
earning assets for the period .. ... .. 92.30% 78.64 57.44 21.94
Cumulative interest sensitive
assets to liabilities ... .......... 1,298.69 468.26 234.99 128.10
Liquidity Risk and short-term borrowings, federal funds purchased,

TrustCo seeks to obtain favorable funding sources
and to maintain prudent levels of liquid assets in
order to satisfy various liquidity demands. In addition
to serving as a funding source for maturing obligations,
liquidity provides flexibility in responding to customer
initiated needs. Many factors affect the ability to meet
liquidity needs, including changes in the markets
served by the Bank’s network of branches, the mix
of assets and liabilities, and general economic
conditions.

The Company actively manages its liquidity
position through target ratios established under
its Asset/ Liability Management policies. Continual
monitoring of these ratios, both historically and
through forecasts under multiple interest rate
scenarios, allows TrustCo to employ strategies
necessary to maintain adequate liquidity levels.
Management has also developed various liquidity
alternatives should abnormal situations develop.

The Company achieves its liability-based liquidity
objectives in a variety of ways. Liabilities can be
classified into three categories for the purposes of
managing liability-based liquidity: core deposits,
purchased money, and capital market funds. TrustCo
seeks deposits that are dependable and predictable
and that are based as much on the level and quality
of service as they are on interest rate. For 2004,
average core deposits (total deposits less time
deposits greater than $100 thousand) amounted
to $2.30 billion, compared to $2.19 billion in 2003.
Average balances of core deposits are detailed
in the table “Mix of Average Sources of Funding.”

In addition to core deposits, another source
of liability-based funding available to TrustCo is
purchased money, which consists of long-term

securities sold under repurchase agreements, and
time deposits greater than $100 thousand. The
average balances of these purchased liabilities
are detailed in the table “Mix of Average Sources
of Funding.” During 2004, the average balance of
purchased liabilities was $277.9 million, compared
with $263.2 million in 2003.

TrustCo also has a line of credit available with the
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York.

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

Commitments to extend credit: The Bank
makes contractual commitments to extend credit,
and extends lines of credit which are subject to the
Bank’s credit approval and monitoring procedures.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, commitments to
extend credit in the form of loans, including unused
lines of credit, amounted to $313.3 million and
$273.9 million, respectively. In management’s
opinion, there are no material commitments to
extend credit that represent unusual risk.

The Company has issued conditional commitments
in the form of standby letters of credit to guarantee
payment on behalf of a customer and guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Standby
letters of credit generally arise in connection with
lending relationships. The credit risk involved in
issuing these instruments is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loans to customers.
Contingent obligations under standby letters of credit
totaled approximately $3.6 million and $3.9 million
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and
represent the maximum potential future payments
the Company could be required to make. Typically,
these instruments have terms of 12 months or less
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and expire unused; therefore, the total amounts do
not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
Each customer is evaluated individually for credit-
worthiness under the same underwriting standards
used for commitments to extend credit and on-
balance sheet instruments. Company policies
governing loan collateral apply to standby letters of
credit at the time of credit extension. Loan-to-value
ratios are generally consistent with loan-to-value
requirements for other commercial loans secured
by similar types of collateral. The fair value of the
Company'’s standby letters of credit at December 31,
2004 and 2003 was insignificant.

Other off-balance sheet risk: TrustCo does not
engage in activities involving interest rate swaps,
forward placement contracts, or any other instruments
commonly referred to as derivatives. Management
believes these instruments pose a high degree of
risk, and that investing in them is unnecessary.

TrustCo has no off-balance sheet partnerships,
joint ventures, or other risk sharing entities.

Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest income: Noninterest income is a
significant source of revenue for the Company and
an important factor in overall results. Total noninterest
income was $32.0 million in 2004, $29.6 million in
2003 and $27.3 million in 2002. Included in the 2004
results are $13.7 million of net securities gains compared
with net gains of approximately $9.8 million in 2003
and $7.5 million in 2002. Excluding securities
transactions, noninterest income was $18.3 million
in 2004, and $19.8 million in 2003 and 2002.

The Trust Department contributes a large recurring
portion of noninterest income through fees generated
by providing fiduciary and investment management
services. Income from these fiduciary activities totaled
$5.9 million in 2004, $6.0 million in 2003, and
$6.8 million in 2002. Trust fees are generally calculated
as a percentage of the assets under management
by the Trust Department. Assets under management
by the Trust Department are not included on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements
because the Trust Department holds these assets in
a fiduciary capacity. At December 31, 2004 and 2003

assets under management by the Trust Department
were approximately $992.3 million and $970.0
million, respectively.

Changes in fees for services to customers reflect
changes in the fee scale used for pricing the services
and the volume of services customers utilized.

Noninterest expense: Noninterest expense was
$48.2 million in 2004, compared with $48.5 million in
2003 and $55.3 million in 2002. TrustCo’s operating
philosophy stresses the importance of monitoring
and controlling the level of noninterest expense.
The efficiency ratio is a strong indicator of how well
controlled and monitored these expenses are for

a banking enterprise. A low ratio indicates highly
efficient performance. TrustCo’s efficiency ratio was
38.8% in 2004, 38.3% in 2003 and 36.7% in 2002.

Salaries and employee benefits are the most
significant component of noninterest expense. For
2004, these expenses amounted to $20.7 million,
compared with $20.4 miltion in 2003, and $22.3
million in 2002. The reduction in salaries and
employee benefit expense between 2002 and
2003 is the result of reductions in salary and bonus
payments made to senior executives and the
payment, in 2002, of a supplemental retirement
benefit for the former chief executive officer.

Net occupany expense increased $336 thousand
between 2003 and 2004 due primarily to new branch
openings during 2004, Equipment expense, however,
decreased $795 thousand for 2004 to $2.3 million as
compared to $3.1 million in 2003. The decrease in
net occupany expense is the result of new equipment
purchased in prior years that requires less maintenance
and due to general reductions in maintenance
contracts in 2004.

Professional services expense increased to
$3.7 million in 2004 compared to $3.0 million in 2003
and $9.0 million in 2002. The increase in 2004 is the
result of payments made to outside computer
vendors and additional cost associated with
complying with new Securities and Exchange
Commission internal control reporting regulations.
The decrease from 2002 to 2003 is the result of
expensing a $6.0 million consulting contract with the
Company’s former chief executive officer in 2002.

NONINTEREST INCOME
(dollars in thousands) For the year ended December 31, 2004 vs. 2003
2004 2003 2002 Amount Percent

Trust departmentincome . ... .. ..... ... ...... $ 5,869 6,046 6,769 (177) (2.9)%

Fees for services to customers ................. 10,486 10,896 10,305 (410) (3.8)

Net gains on securities transactions ............. 13,712 9,807 7,499 3,905 39.8

Other ....... e e 1,898 2,900 2,725 (1,002) (34.6)
Total noninterestincome .................... $31,965 29,649 27,298 2,316 7.8%
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NONINTEREST EXPENSE
(dollars in thousands) For the year ended December 31, 2004 vs. 2003
2004 2003 2002 Amount Percent
Salaries and employee benefits . . ................ $20,697 20,449 22,338 248 1.2%
Net occupancyexpense . ..., 6,601 6,265 5,594 336 5.4
Equipmentexpense .. ...... .. .. . i 2,283 3,078 2,946 (795) (25.8)
Professional services . ... .. 3,685 3,040 8,987 645 21.2
Outsourced services ..............oovviviene.. 4,348 5,601 2,055 (1,2563) (22.4)
Chatritable contributions . ....................... 654 513 1,588 141 27.5
Other real estate income, net . ................... (739) (457) (348) (282) 61.7
Other .. e 10,636 9,997 12,166 639 6.4
Total noninterestexpense . ........... .. ...... $48,165 48,486 55,326 (321) (0.1)%
Outsourced service expense was $4.3 million in (dotfars in thousands) Payments Due by Period:
2004 compared to $5.6 million in 2003. The decrease Less Than  1-3 3-5 More Than
is the result of new processing contracts in 2004 at 1Year  Years Years 5 Years Total
lower rates and the full year effect in 2004 of services Federal Home
brought back in house during 2003. Loan Bank
Charitable contributions expense decreased borrowings. . . . . $ 27 58 29 — 114
approximately $1.1 million between 2003 and 2002 .
as a result of an additional contribution made in Operating leases... 2,988 4,473 4,322 23,497 34,880
2002 in recognition of the 100 year anniversar
J y y Total $2,615 4,531 4,351 23,497 34,994

of the Company.

Changes in other components of noninterest
expense are the results of normal banking activities
and the increased activities associated with new
branching facilities.

Income Tax

In 2004, TrustCo recognized income tax expense
of $26.8 million, as compared to $23.3 million in 2003
and $17.0 million in 2002. The tax expense on the
Company’s income was different than tax expense at
the Federal statutory rate of 35%, due primarily to
tax exempt income and, to a lesser extent, the effect
of New York State income taxes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to
management’s judgment that realization is more
likely than not.

Based primarily on the sufficiency of historical
and future taxable income, management believes
it is more likely than not that the net deferred
tax assets of $33.1 million and $36.2 million at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, will
be realized.

Contractual Obligations

The Company is contractually obligated to make
the following payments on long-term debt and leases
as of December 31, 2004:

in addition, the Company is contractually obligated
to pay data processing vendors approximately
$5 million per year through 2011.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 2004, 2003 and 2002 have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America
which require the measurement of financial position
and operating results in terms of historical dollars
without considering the changes in the relative
purchasing power of money over time due to
inflation. The impact of inflation is reflected in the
increasing cost of operations.
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Unlike most industrial companies, nearly all the
assets and liabilities of the Company are monetary.

As a result, changes in interest rates have a
greater impact on the Company’s performance than
do the effects of general levels of inflation, because
interest rates do not necessarily move in the same
direction or to the same extent as the price of goods
and services.

Impact of New Accounting Standards
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issue 03-1
(“EITF 03-17), The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments,

addresses when impairment of securities is
considered other than temporary. The initial EITF
consensus, reached in November 2003, required
disclosures related to other than temporary
impairment. In March 2004, the EITF reached a
consensus on the recognition and measurement
of impairment of securities considered other than
temporarily impaired for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2004. However, in September 2004,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued EITF 03-1-1, which deferred the effective date
for the measurement and recognition provisions of
EITF 03-1. The FASB is currently reconsidering

all other than temporary impairment literature.
Management does not believe the provisions, as
currently written, will have a material impact on the
results of future operations.

In December 2003, the Accounting Standards
Executive Committee (“AcSEC”) issued Statement
of Position (“SOP”) 03-3, “Accounting for Certain
Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer.”
The SOP is effective for loans acquired in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2004. The
SOP addresses accounting for differences between
contractual cash flows and cash flows expected to
be collected from an investor’s initial investment in
loans or debt securities (loans) acquired in a transfer
if those differences are attributable, at least in part,
to credit quality. The SOP applies to loans acquired
in business combinations but does not apply to
originated loans. Management does not believe the
provision of this standard will have a material impact
on the results of future operations.

in December 2003, the FASB issued a revision
to SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures.about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits - an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, and
106”. This statement prescribes employers’
disclosures about pension plans and other post-
retirement benefit plans; it does not change the
measurement or recognition of those plans. The
statement retains and revises the disclosure
requirements contained in the original Statement
132. It also requires additional disclosures about

the assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic
benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and
other postretirement benefit plans. The Company’s
disclosures in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the requirements of the
revised Statement 132.

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Mcdernization Act of 2003
{the Act) became law in the United States. The Act
introduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare
as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree
health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that
is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D
under the Act. In accordance with FASB Staff Position
FAS 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improve-
ment and Modernization Act of 2003,” the Company
has elected to defer recognition of the effects of
the Act in any measures of the benefit obligation
or cost. The Company is still analyzing the specific
authoritative guidance on the accounting for the
federal subsidy, which was issued in January 2005,
but the Company anticipates that, in order to make
the plan actuarially equivalent, it will make minor
changes to its non-pension postretirement plan.
Accordingly, the measures of the accumulated non-
pension postretirement benefit obligation and net
periodic non-pension postretirement benefit cost do
not reflect any amount associated with the subsidy.

in December 2004, the FASB issued revised
statement No. 123 (FAS 123R), “Share-Based
Payment,” which requires companies to expense the
estimated fair value of employee stock options and
similar awards. The accounting provisions of FAS
123R will be effective for public companies beginning
July 1, 2005. The Company will adopt the provisions
of FAS 123R using a modified prospective
application. Under modified prospective application,
FAS 123R will apply to new awards and to awards
that are outstanding on the effective date and are
subsequently modified or cancelled. Compensation
expense for outstanding awards for which the
requisite service had not been rendered as of the
effective date will be recognized over the remaining
service period using the compensation cost
calculated for pro forma disclosure purposes under
FAS 123. The Company will incur additional expense
beginning July 1, 2005 related to new awards
granted and the unvested portions of earlier awards.
The Company is in the process of determining the
impact the recognition of compensation expense
related to stock awards will have on its consolidated
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

{dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2004 2003
a1 Q2 a3 Q4 Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
income statement:

Interest income ........ $34,409 34,105 34,951 35,320 138,785 35401 34,745 32,041 34,943 137130
Interest expense ....... 8,346 9,439 9,797 10,174 38,756 11,706 10,346 9,307 9,380 40,739
Net interest income 25,063 24,666 25,154 25146 100,029 23,695 24399 22734 25563 96,391
Provision for loan losses . . 150 150 150 — 450 300 300 300 300 1,200
Net interest income

after provision for

loanlosses ......... 24,913 24,516 25,004 25,146 99,579 23,395 24,099 22434 25263 95,191
Noninterest income ... .. 8,721 8,375 8,990 5,879 31,965 7,850 7508 10,201 4090 29,649
Noninterest expense .... 12,508 11,699 11,483 12,475 48,165 12669 12579 11,600 11,638 48,486
Income before

incometaxes ........ 21,126 21,192 22,511 18,550 83,379 18,576 19,028 21,035 17,715 76,354
Income tax expense . . . .. 6,993 6,821 7,298 5,727 26,839 5,384 5,617 6,750 5572 23,323
Netincome ........... $14,133  14,3M1 15,213 12,823 56,540 13,192 13411 14285 12,143 53,031

Per share data:

Basic earnings ......... $ 191 193 .205 72 761 178 180 192 163 713
Diluted earnings ....... .188 191 .203 71 .753 175 178 189 161 .704
Cash dividends declared . . 150 150 150 150 .600 150 150 150 150 .600

Critical Accounting Policies

Pursuant to SEC guidance, management of the
Company is encouraged to evaluate and disclose
those accounting policies that are judged to be
critical policies - those most important to the portrayal
of the Company’s financial condition and results, and
that require management’s most difficult subjective
or complex judgments. Management considers the
accounting policy relating to the allowance for loan
losses to be a critical accounting policy given the
inherent uncertainty in evaluating the levels of the
allowance required to cover credit losses in the
portfolio and the material effect that such judgments
can have on the results of operations. Included in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements is a
description of the significant accounting policies that
are utilized by the Company in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this review and in future
filings by TrustCo with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, in TrustCo's press releases, and in oral
statements made with the approval of an authorized
executive officer, which are not historical or current

facts, are “forward-looking statements” made pursuant
to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from historical
earnings and those presently anticipated or
projected. TrustCo wishes to caution readers not to
place undue reliance on any such forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date made.
The following important factors, among others, in
some cases have affected and in the future could
affect TrustCo’s actual results, and could cause
TrustCo’s actual financial performance to differ
materially from that expressed in any forward-looking
statement: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3)
competition, (4) changes in the regulatory }
environment, and (5) changes in local market area
and general business and economic trends. The
foregoing list should not be construed as exhaustive,
and the Company disclaims any obligation to
subsequently revise any forward-looking statements
to reflect events or circumstances after the date of
such statements, or to reflect the occurrence of
anticipated or unanticipated events.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATA

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Statement of income data:
Interestincome ........... . . .. . ..., $ 138,785 137,130 153,735 168,660 173,702
Interestexpense ......... ... ... ... ... ... 38,756 40,739 58,020 72,763 75,648
Netinterestincome ...................... 100,029 96,391 95,715 95,897 98,054
Provision for loanlosses .................. 450 1,200 1,420 4,940 4,114
Net interest income after provision
forloanlosses ........................ 99,579 95,191 94,295 90,957 93,940
Noninterestincome ...................... 31,965 29,649 27,298 25,802 16,366
Noninterestexpense ..................... 48,165 48,486 55,326 51,313 47,767
Income before incometaxes ............... 83,379 76,354 66,267 65,446 62,539
Incometaxes .......... .. i 26,839 23,323 17,023 19,936 20,837
Netincome .......... ... ... .. .. ........ $ 56,540 53,031 49,244 45,510 41,702
Share data:
Average equivalent diluted shares
(inthousands) ........................ 75,081 75,306 74,618 73,673 73,044
Tangiblebookvalue ...................... $ 3.02 3.06 3.16 2.88 2.77
Cashdividends ......................... .600 .600 .600 .541 471
Basicearnings . ........... i 761 713 .678 .640 .590
Dilutedearnings ........... ... ... ... .753 .704 .660 618 571
Financial:
Return on average assets ................. 2.00% 1.96 1.83 1.83 1.76
Return on average shareholders’ equity (1) . . .. 26.65 26.21 26.08 25.31 24.07
Cash dividend payoutratio ................ 78.83 83.98 88.60 84.58 79.78
Tier 1 capital to average assets (leverage ratio) 7.74 7.53 7.78 7.72 7.31
Tier 1 capital as a % of total risk adjusted
assets ... 17.09 16.54 15.48 13.58 14.03
Total capital as a % of total risk adjusted
ASSetS . ... 18.37 17.82 16.77 14.86 15.32
Efficiencyratio .............. ... .. S 38.78 38.33 36.66 38.96 38.06
Netinterestmargin .. ..................... 3.85% 3.94 4.00 4.31 4.47
Average balances:
Totalassets ............ccvviiiiin.n. $2,828,195 2,710,175 2,693,505 2,488,169 2,372,926
Earningassets ........ .. ... ot 2,729,280 2,606,292 2,579,379 2,376,359 2,292,094
Loans,net .......... ... ... ... .. 1,176,856 1,275,023 1,512,448 1,518,768 1,395,414
Allowance forloanlosses ................. (49,299) (51,311) (56,525) (57,398) (56,362)
Securities availableforsale ................ 1,057,845 833,905 568,056 581,669 654,454
DepPOSitS - ..o 2,474,179 2,340,827 2,212,440 2,027,650 1,985,803
Short-term borrowings . ......... .. .. ... .. 100,855 107,799 210,363 205,821 164,114
Long-termdebt....... ... ... ... ... 151 326 510 758 596
Shareholders'equity ..................... 223,719 225,045 214,963 202,848 175,973

(1) Average shareholders’ equity excludes the market adjustment for securities available for sale.
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Glossary of Terms

Allowance for Loan Losses

A balance sheet account which represents management’s
estimate of probable credit losses in the loan portfolio.
The provision for loan losses is added to the allowance
account, charge offs of loans decrease the allowance
balance and recoveries on previously charged off loans
serve to increase the balance.

Basic Earnings Per Share

Net income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period.

Cash Dividends Per Share

Total cash dividends for each share outstanding on the
record dates.

Comprehensive Income

Net income plus the change in selected items recorded
directly to capital such as the net change in unrealized
market gains and losses on securities available for sale.

Core Deposits

Deposits that are traditionally stable, including all deposits
other than time deposits of $100,000 or more.

Derivative Investments

investments in futures contracts, forwards, swaps, or other
investments with similar characteristics.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Net income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, taking into
consideration the effect of any dilutive stock options.
Earning Assets

The sum of interest-bearing deposits with banks, securities
available for sale, investment securities, loans, net of
unearned income, and federal funds sold.

Efficiency Ratio

Noninterest expense (excluding nonrecurring charges, and
other real estate expense) divided by taxable equivalent
net interest income plus noninterest income (excluding
securities transactions). This is an indicator of the
recurring total cost of operating the Company in relation to
the recurring total income generated.

Federal Funds Sold

A short term (generally one business day) investment of
excess cash reserves from one bank to another.
Impaired Loans

Loans, principally commercial, where it is probable that the
borrower will be unable to make the principal and interest
payments according to the contractual terms of the loan,
and all loans restructured subsequent to January 1, 1995.
Interest Bearing Liabilities

The sum of interest bearing deposits, federal funds
purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase,
other short-term borrowings, and long-term debt.

Interest Rate Spread

The difference between the taxable equivalent yield on
earning assets and the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities.
Liquidity

The ability to meet loan commitments, deposit withdrawals,
and maturing borrowings as they come due.
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Net Interest Income

The difference between income on earning assets and
interest expense on interest bearing liabilities.

Net Interest Margin

Fully taxable equivalent net interest income as a percentage
of average earning assets.

Net Loans Charged Off

Reductions to the allowance for loan losses written off as
losses, net of the recovery of loans previously charged off.

Nonaccrual Loans

Loans for which no periodic accrual of interest income is
recognized.

Nonperforming Assets

The sum of nonperforming loans plus foreclosed real
estate properties.

Nonperforming Loans

The sum of loans in a nonaccrual status (for purposes of
interest recognition), plus loans whose repayment criteria
have been renegotiated to less than market terms due to
the inability of the borrowers to repay the loan in accordance
with its original terms, plus accruing loans three payments
or more past due as to principal or interest payments.
Parent Company

A company that owns or controls a subsidiary through the
ownership of voting stock.

Real Estate Owned

Real estate acquired through foreclosure proceedings.
Restructured Loans

A refinanced loan in which the bank allows the borrower
certain concessions that would normally not be considered.
The concessions are made in light of the borrower'’s
financial difficulties and the bank’s objective to maximize
recovery on the loan.

Return on Average Assets
Net income as a percentage of average total assets.

Return on Average Equity

Net income as a percentage of average equity, excluding
the impact of the mark to market adjustment for securities
available for sale.

Risk-Adjusted Assets

A regulatory calculation that assigns risk factors to various
assets on the balance sheet.

Risk-Based Capital

The amount of capital required by federal regulatory
standards, based on a risk-weighting of assets.

Tangible Book Value Per Share

Total shareholders’ equity (less goodwill) divided by shares
outstanding on the same date. This provides an indication
of the tangible book value of a share of stock.

Taxable Equivalent (TE)

Tax exempt income that has been adjusted to an amount
that would yield the same after tax income had the income
been subject to taxation at the statutory federal and/or
state income tax rates.

Tier 1 Capital

Total shareholders’ equity excluding the market value
adjustment of securities available for sale.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of TrustCo Bank Corp NY is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. TrustCao’s internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board of directors regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

TrustCo management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2004, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

TrustCo’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on our
assessment of, and the effective operation of, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004. This report appears on page 28.

UL R7Cdy Tt

Robert J. McCormick Robert T. Cushing Scot R. Salvador
President and Executive Vice President and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Chief Banking Officer

March 8, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
TrustCo Bank Corp NY:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that TrustCo Bank Corp NY (the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that TrustCo Bank Corp NY maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also,

in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated statements of condition of TrustCo Bank Corp NY and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated March 8, 2005, expressed an ungqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

KPMma LIP

Albany, New York
March 8, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
TrustCo Bank Corp NY:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of TrustCo Bank Corp NY and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consofidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TrustCo Bank Corp NY and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0}, and our report dated March 8, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of, and the
effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

KPMre LLP

Albany, New York
March 8, 2005
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Interest income:
Interestandfees onloans ... ... . e e $ 75,194 87,614 111,993
Interest and dividends on:
U.S. Treasuries and @genCies ... ...ttt 39,795 25,985 11,649
States and political subdivisions . ........ ... ... 8,666 10,718 11,905
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations ......... 7,032 3,618 4,483
Other . 1,424 3,541 5,247
Interest on federal funds sold and other short-term investments .. ............. 6,675 5,654 8,458
Total interest INCOME . ... .. i i e 138,786 137,130 153,735
interest expense:
Interest On depositS . .. .. .o e 37,777 39,843 55,150
Interest on short-term borrowings .. ......... .. . 972 877 2,840
Intereston long-termdebt . ... ... .. .. ... 8 19 30
Total interest exXpense . ... ... e 38,757 40,739 58,020
Netinterestincome . ... . ... . . . 100,029 96,391 85,715
Provision forloan l0SSes . ... ... i 450 1,200 1,420
Net interest income after provision forloanlosses ..................... 99,579 95,191 94,295
Noninterest income:
Trust department iNCOMeE . .. ... ... . i e e 5,869 6,046 6,769
Fees for servicesto CUSIOMErs . ... ... .. ... . . it e 10,486 10,896 10,305
Net gain on securities transactions . .............. ... . ... .. . .. 13,712 9,807 7,499
OthEr . e e 1,898 2,900 2,725
Total noninterest iNCOME . . ... .. i e e 31,965 29,649 27,298
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits .. .. ... ... . 20,697 20,449 22,338
Net OCCUPaNCY EBXPENSE . . .o oottt e et e e e 6,601 6,265 5,594
Equipment eXpense . . .. ... . 2,283 3,078 2,946
Professional services . ... ... e 3,685 3,040 8,987
OULISOUICEA SEIVICES . o i ittt e e e e e 4,348 5,601 2,055
Charitable contributions . . .. ... ... . . . e 654 513 1,588
Other real estate income, net . . ... ... ... . . .. e (739) (457) (348)
OthEr 10,636 9,997 12,166
Total noninterest eXpense . ... ... .. 48,165 48,486 55,326
Income beforeincometaxes ....... ... .. .. . e 83,379 76,354 66,267
INCOM tAXES . .. e 26,839 23,323 17,023
NetiNCOME . .. o e e $ 56,540 53,031 49,244
Earnings per share:
BasiC ... e e $ 761 713 .678
Diluted . .. .753 704 .660

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Condition

(dollars in thousands, except share data) As of December 31,

2004 2003
ASSETS

Cashanddue frombanks . . .. ... oot $ 54,222 56,425
Federal funds sold and other short-term investments . ... ........ .. ... ... .. 642,208 355,257
Total cashand cashequivalents . ........... . . i 696,430 411,682
Securities available forsale. . . ... . 895,989 1,176,926
LOaNS. . e e s 1,240,430 1,162,647
Less: Unearned iNCOme. . .. ..ot tee 365 381
Allowance for 10an 108SeS . . . .ot e 49,384 48,739
NEt I0ANS . . oottt e e 1,190,681 1,113,527
Bank premises and eqUIpMeNt .. ... .. L e 22,479 20,168
(0 (T = EoTC1<) £ A U 58,255 55,816
Total @SSOt . . ot e $2,863,834 2,778,119

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Deposits:
1T o o= o $ 237,423 197,116
VIS - . ottt 820,593 780,862
Interest bearing checking acCounts. .. ... oot ti 336,538 334,038
Money market deposit aCCOUNts . ... ... 155,299 159,645
Certificates of deposit (in denominations of $100,0000rmore) .................... 178,021 170,423
Other tiMe A@CCOUNES . . o o ittt et e ettt e e e e e e e e 799,228 777,726
Total deposits . ..o v 2,527,102 2,419,810
SO DO OWINGS . . . o o oot 77,979 90,608
Long-term debt . ... ... 114 239
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .. ... .. ... ... . 32,807 40,700
Total ligbilities . .. ... 2,638,002 2,551,357

Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock; $1 par value. 100,000,000 shares authorized, 81,727,754 and

80,711,016 shares issued at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively .......... 81,728 80,711
SUIPIUS .o 114,218 103,611
Undivided profits . . . ... ... e 90,018 78,051
Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale, netoftax . .................. 4,459 21,042
Treasury stock; 7,187,784 and 6,765,119 shares, at cost, at December 31, 2004

and 2003, respectively. . . ... o (64,591) (56,653)

Total shareholders’ equity . ... ... 225,832 226,762
Total liabilities and shareholders’equity .......... ... .. ... ... i $2,863,834 2,778,119

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Three Years Ended December 31, 2004

Accumulated

Other  Compre-
Capital Undivided Comprehensive  hensive  Treasury
Stock  Surplus Profits Income Income Stock Total
Beginning balance, January 1,2002 . ..................... 76,169 75,355 63,940 21,668 (31,305) 205,827
Comprehensive income
Netincome —2002 ................................ — — 49,244 — 49,244 — 49,244
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: '
Unrealized net holding gain arising during the year,
net of tax (pre-tax gain $16,729) . . . ... ............... — — — — 10,166 — —
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized
in net income during the year (pre-tax gain $7,499) ... ... — — — — (4,557) — —
Other comprehensiveincome ......................... — — — 5,609 5,609 — 5,609
Comprehensiveincome. ................. e, 54,853
Cash dividend declared, $.600 pershare................... —_ — (43,631) — —  (43,631)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefits . . ........... 2,939 15,946 — — — 18,885
Treasury stock purchased (703,704 shares) ............. ... —_ — — — (8,844)  (8,844)
Sale of treasury stock (636,122 shares) ................... — 708 — — 7,046 7,754
Ending balance, December 31,2002 ...................... 79,108 92,009 69,553 27,277 (33,103) 234,844
Comprehensive income
Netincome —2003 ............. ... ... i, — —_ 53,031 — 53,031 — 53,03t
QOther comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized net holding loss arising during the year,
net of tax (pre-tax loss of $1,059) . ................ ... — — — — (608) — —_
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized
in net income during the year (pre-tax gain $9,807) ... ... — - — — {5,627) — —
Other comprehensive 10SS . ... ........ ..ot — — — (6,235) (6,235) — (6,235)
Comprehensive inCoOmMe . .......... it 46,796
Cash dividend declared, $.600 pershare................... — — (44,533) — —  (44,533)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefits . ............ 1,603 10,481 — — — 12,084
Treasury stock purchased (2,525,000 shares) . .............. — — — — (30,034) (30,034)
Sale of treasury stock (690,181 shares) ................... — 1,121 — —_ 6,484 7,605
Ending balance, December 31,2003 . ..................... 80,711 103,611 78,051 21,042 (56,653) 226,762
Comprehensive income
Netincome —2004 ........... ... ... ... ... ... - - 56,540 — 56,540 — 56,548
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized net holding loss arising during the year,
net of tax (pre-tax loss $13,868) ... .................. - - - - (8,335) —_ —
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized
in net income during the year (pre-tax gain $13,712) .. . .. — _ —_ —_ (8,248) _— _
Other comprehensive 10SS. . ...t - — — (16,583) (16,583) — (16,583)
Comprehensiveincome........... ... ... i, 39,957
Cash dividend declared, $.600 pershare. .................. — —  (44,573) —_ —  (44,573)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefits . . ........... 1,017 8,264 — — —_ 9,281
Treasury stock purchased (1,021,397 shares)............... — —_ —_ —_ (13,482) (13,482)
Sale of treasury stock (598,732 shares) ................... - 2,343 —_ —_ 5,544 7,887
Ending balance, December 31,2004 ...................... $81,728 114,218 90,018 4,459 (64,591) 226,832

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(dollars in thousands) Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities:
NetinCome . .. ... ... $ 56,540 53,031 49,244

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ............ ... ... . ... . 1,898 2,492 2,168
Net gain on sales of real estateowned ............. .. ... ... .... (893) (522) (726)
Net loss/(gain) on sales of bank premises and equipment . ............ 55 (263) 4
Provision forloan losses ... ..o 450 1,200 1,420
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense . .......... .. ... i 3,106 (2,645) 10,500
Net gain on securities transactions .............. ... . ... (13,712) (9,807) (7,499)
Decrease/(increase) in taxes receivable .......................... (2,424) 3,356 (8,296)
Decrease/(increase) in interestreceivable .. ........... .. ... ... .. .. 2,864 (2,837) 3,605
Increase/(decrease) ininterestpayable . ............. ... ... ... 75 (507) (295)
Decrease/(increase) inotherassets .. ........... ... ... . oin... 5,011 (1,761) 17,573
Decrease in acCrued eXpenses ... ... oe it (8,037) (3,636) (15,875)
Total adjustments . ... ... . (11,607) (14,930) 2,579
Net cash provided by operating activities .. .................... 44,933 38,101 51,823
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities available forsale ......... ... 1,155,807 1,064,580 238,602
Proceeds from maturities of securities available forsale ................ 881 3,573 180,332
Purchases of securities available forsale ........................... (889,618) (1,592,974) (468,268)
Net decrease/(increase) inloans .......... P (77,604) 255,016 128,093
Proceeds from sales of real estateowned  ........... ... ... ... ..... 893 608 1,282
Proceeds from sales of bank premises and equipment . ................ 23 271 25
Purchases of bank premises and equipment .. ....................... (4,287) (2,953) (3,164)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . ... ................. 186,095 (271,879) 76,902
Cash flows from financing activities:
Netincrease indeposits .. ... i i 107,292 145,542 181,362
Net decrease in short-term borrowings ............................. (12,629) (50,623) (76,988)
Repaymentoflong-termdebt ... ... .. .. .. ... . (125) (188) (197)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and related tax benefits . ........ 9,281 12,084 18,885
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock .. ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... 7,887 7,605 7,754
Payments to acquire treasury stock .. ........ ... i (13,482) (30,034) (8,844)
Dividends paid .. ... ... (44,504) (45,008) (43,188)
Net cash provided by financing activities ... ....... ... ... ... ....... 53,720 39,378 78,784
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ................... 284,748 (194,400) 207,509
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear ........................ 411,682 606,082 398,573
Cash and cash equivalents atendofyear .. ......... ... ... ... ... .... $696,430 411,682 606,082
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interestpaid .. ... ... ... $ 38,681 41,246 58,315
Incometaxes paid ....... ... i 24,038 18,865 8,035
Transfer of loanstorealestateowned ............ ... ... ... .. .. ..... - — 227
Increase/(decrease) individendspayable ............ ... .. ... ... .... 69 (475) 443
Change in unrealized gain on securities available for sale —gross ......... (27,579) 10,865 (9,230)
Change in deferred tax effect on unrealized gain on securities
availableforsale ............ .. 10,996 (4,630) 3,621

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Basis of Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting policies of
TrustCo Bank Corp NY (Company or TrustCo), ORE
Subsidiary Corp., Trustco Bank (referred to as Trustco
Bank or Bank), and its wholly owned subsidiary, Trustco
Vermont Investment Company, and its subsidiary
Trustco Realty Corporation conform to general practices
within the banking industry and are in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. A description of the more significant
policies follows.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company include the accounts of the subsidiaries after
elimination of all significant intercompany accounts
and transactions.

Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale are carried at approximate
market value with any unrealized appreciation or
depreciation of value, net of tax, included as an element
of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss
in shareholders’ equity. Management maintains an
available for sale portfolio in order to provide maximum
flexibility in balance sheet management. The designation
of available for sale is made at the time of purchase
based upon management's intent to hold the securities for
an indefinite period of time. These securities, however, are
available for sale in response to changes in market inter-
est rates, related changes in liquidity needs, or changes
in the availability of and yield on alternative investments.
Unrealized losses on securities that reflect a decline in
value which is other than temporary, if any, are charged
to income. Nonmarketable equity securities (principally
stock of the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal
Home Loan Bank, both of which are required holdings
for the Company) are included in securities available
for sale at cost since there is no readily available market
value.

The cost of debt securities available for sale is
adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of
discount using the level yield method.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities available
for sale are based on the amortized cost of the
specific security sold. '

Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstanding
net of unearned income and unamortized loan fees
and costs, which are recognized as income over the
applicable loan term.

Nonperforming loans include nonaccrual loans,
restructured loans, and loans which are three payments
or more past due and still accruing interest. Generally,
loans are placed in nonaccrual status either due to the
delinquent status of principal and/or interest payments,
or a judgment by management that, although payments
of principal and/or interest are current, such action is
prudent. Future payments received on nonperforming
loans are recorded as interest income or principal
reductions based upon management’s ultimate
expectation for collection. Loans may be removed
from nonaccrual status when they hecome current as
to principal and interest and have demonstrated a
sustained ability to make loan payments in accordance
with the contractual terms of the loan. Loans may
also be removed from nonaccrual status when, in the
opinion of management, the loan is expected to be
fully collectable as to principal and interest.

Impaired loans have been defined as commercial
and commercial real estate loans in nonaccrual status
and restructured loans. Income recognition for
impaired loans is consistent with income recognition
for non-performing loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a
level considered adequate by management to provide
for probable loan losses based on consideration of the
credit risk of the loan portfolio, including a review of
past experience, current economic conditions, and
underlying collateral value. The allowance is increased
by provisions charged against income and
reduced/increased by net charge offs/recoveries.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an
integral part of their examination process, periodically
review the Company'’s allowance for loan losses.
Such agencies may require the Company to change
the allowance based on their judgments of information
available to them at the time of their examination.

Bank Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization computed
on either the straight-line or accelerated methods over
the remaining useful lives of the assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Real Estate Owned

Real estate owned are assets acquired through
foreclosures on loans.

Foreclosed assets held for sale are recorded on
an individual basis at the lower of (1) fair value minus
estimated costs to sell or (2) “cost” (which is the fair
value at initial foreclosure). When a property is acquired,
the excess of the loan balance over fair value is charged
to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write
downs and gains on sale are included in noninterest
expense,

Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are recorded for the future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized
in the financial statements or tax returns based upon
enacted tax laws and rates. Deferred tax assets are
recognized subject to management’s judgment that
realization is more likely than not.

Dividend Restrictions

Banking regulations restrict the amount of cash
dividends which may be paid during a year by Trustco
Bank to the Company without the written consent of
the appropriate bank regulatory agency. Based on
these restrictions, during 2005 Trustco Bank could
pay cash dividends to the Company of $41.7 million
plus 2005 year-to-date net profits. In addition, at
December 31, 2004 the Company has $29.6 million
of assets available to pay dividends to shareholders.

Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan
covering substantially all of its employees. The benefits
are based on years of service and the employee’s
compensation.

The Company has a postretirement benefit plan
that permits retirees under age 65 to participate in the
Company’s medical plan by paying certain levels of
premium payment. At age 65, the Company provides
a Medicare Supplemental program to retirees.

Stock Option Plans

The Company has stock option plans for officers
and directors and has adopted the disclosure only
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (Statement 123) and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure” (Statement 148).

The Company'’s stock option plans are accounted
for in accordance with the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” (APB Opinion 25) and as such,
no compensation expense has been recorded for these
plans. Had compensation expense for the Company’s
stock option plans been determined consistent with

Statement 123, the Company’s net income and earnings
per share would have been as follows:

(dollars in thousands,

except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
Net income:
Asreported .. .......... $56,540 53,031 49,244

Deduct: total stock-based

compensation expense

determined under fair

value based method

for all awards, net of

related tax effects .. ....... (868) (926)  (1,207)

$55,672 52,105 48,037

Pro forma net income . . ..

Earnings per share;

Basic —asreported ... ... $ .761 713 878

Basic—proforma....... 750 .701 .661
Diluted —as reported .. .. .753 704 .660
Diluted — pro forma ..... 742 692 .645

The weighted average fair value of each option as
of the grant date, estimated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model, and calculated in accordance with
Statement 123 was as follows for options granted in
the year indicated:

Employees’  Directors’

Plan Plan

2004 ... $2.000 1.870
2002 ... 1.730 1.680

Stock options were not issued in 2003 for officers or
directors.

The following assumptions were utilized in the
calculation of the fair value of the options under
Statement 123: .

Employees’  Directors’
Plan Plan
Expected dividend yield: ‘
2004 ................... 4.32% 4.32
2002 ... 4.45 445
Risk-free interest rate:
2004 ................... 3.89 3N
2002 ... 4.10 3.79
Expected volatility rate: ‘
2004 ... ... 21.42 20.38
2002 ... 21.75 22.41
Expectedlives ................... 7.5years 6.0 years

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed
by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period, taking
into consideration the effect of any dilutive stock options.

Aﬁ
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued

Reclassification of Prior Year Statements

It is the Company’s policy to reclassify prior year
consolidated financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation.

Segment Reporting

The Company’s operations are exclusively in the
financial services industry and include the provision of
traditional banking services. Management evaluates
the perfarmance of the Company based on only ane
business segment, that of community banking. The
Company operates primarily in the geographical region
of Upstate New York with new Company operations in
central Florida and the mid-Hudson valley region of
New York. In the opinion of management, the Company
does not have any other reportable segments as defined
by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information”.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies cash on hand, cash due
from banks, federal funds sold, and other short-term
investments as cash and cash equivalents for
disclosure purposes.

Trust Assets

Assets under management by the Trust Department
are not included on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements because the Trust Department
holds these assets in a fiduciary capacity.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Landmark Financial Corporation in
a purchase business combination during 2000. Due
to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” effective January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer
being amortized. The Company considers this intangible
asset to be unimpaired at December 31, 2004 and
2003. Goodwill at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was
$553 thousand.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents the sum of net
income and items of other comprehensive income or
loss, which are reported directly in shareholders’
equity, net of tax, such as the change in net unrealized
gain or loss on securities available for sale. The
Company has reported comprehensive income and
its components in the Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. Accumulated other
comprehensive income or loss, which is a component
of shareholders’ equity, represents the net unrealized
gain or loss on securities available for sale, net of tax.

(2) Balances at Other Banks

The Company is required to maintain certain reserves
of vault cash and/or deposits with the Federal Reserve
Bank. The amount of this reserve requirement, included
in cash and due from banks, was approximately
$19.6 million and $16.3 million at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

(3) Securities Available for Sale
The amortized cost and market value of the
securities available for sale are as follows:

December 31, 2004
Gross Gross

(dollars in thousands)

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasuries
and agencies . .. $521,578 98 4,115 517,561
States and political
subdivisions ... 147,988 7,033 82 154,939
Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations .... 201,579 1,466 1,422 201,623
Other........... 685 — — 685
Total debt
securities ..... 871,830 8,597 5,619 874,808
Equity securities .. 16,741 4,440 —_ 21,181
Total securities
available for
sale....... ....$888,5711 13,037 5,619 895,989
(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2003
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasuries
and agencies ..$ 863,528 4,517 4,386 863,659
States and political
subdivisions ... 182,118 9,722 113 191,727
Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations . ... 64,718 1,642 38 66,322
Other .......... 685 — — 685
Total debt
securities . .. .. 1,111,049 15,881 4537 1,122,393
Equity securities 30,880 23,768 115 54,533
Total securities
available for
sale ......... $1,141,929 39,649 4,652 1,176,926

Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal
Reserve Bank stock included in equity securities at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, was $12.1 million
and $14.4 million, respectively.
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The following table distributes the debt securities included
in the available for sale portfolio as of December 31,
2004, based on the securities’ final maturity (mortgage-

backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations

are stated using an estimated average life):

(dollars in thousands) Amortized Market
Cost Value

Dueinoneyearorless ............ $ 24,6583 25,066
Due after one year through five years .. 169,344 169,209
Due after five years through ten years .. 40,075 39,992
Due aftertenyears ................ 637,758 640,541
$871,830 874,808

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because of securities prepayments and the right of
certain issuers to call or prepay their obligations with-
out penalty.

Gross unrealized losses on investment securities
available for sale and the related fair values aggregated
by the length of time that individual securities have been
in an unrealized loss position, were as follows:

December 31, 2004

Less than 12 months
12 months or more

(dollars in thousands)

Total

Gross
Unreal.
Value Loss

Gross Gross
Fair  Unreal. Fair Unreal. Fair
Value Loss  Value Loss

U.S. Treasuries
and agencies . . $381,738 3,248 82,133 867 463,871 4,115

States and political
subdivisions. . . . . 3,046 63

Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations. . . .. 125,090 1,419 1,433 3 126,5231,422

Total ........... $509,874 4,730 84,474 889 594,348 5,619

908 19 3,954 82

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2003

Less than 12 months
12 months or more Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair ~ Unreal. Fair Unreal. Fair Unreal.
_ Value Loss Value Loss  Value Loss
U.S. Treasuries
and agencies .. $321,188 4,386 — — 321,188 4,386
States and political
subdivisions. . . 4,661 113 — — 4,661 113
Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations. ... .. 19,393 38 — — 19,393 38
Equity securities... 4,790 115 — — 4790 115
Total ........... $350,032 4,652 — — 350,032 4,652

U.S. Treasuries and agencies, States and political
subdivisions: The unrealized losses on these investments
were caused by market interest rate increases. The
contractual terms of these investments require the issuer
to settle the securities at par upon maturity of the
investment. Because the Company has the ability to
hold these investments until a market price recovery
or possibly to maturity, these investments are not
considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

Mortgage-backed securities: The unrealized losses
on investments in mortgage-backed securities were
caused by market interest rate increases. The contractual
cash flows of these securities are guaranteed by various
government agencies or government sponsored enter-
prises, such as GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC. Because
the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in
market interest rates and not credit quality, and because
the Company has the ability to hold these investments
until a market price recovery or possibly to maturity,
these investments are not considered other-than-
temporarily impaired.

The proceeds from sales and calls of securities, gross
realized gains and gross realized losses from sales
and calls during 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

(dollars in thousands) December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Proceeds ................ $1,155,807 1,064,580 238,602
Gross realized gains ........ 25,006 22,645 9,617
Gross realized losses ....... 11,24 12,838 2,118

The amount of securities available for sale that
have been pledged to secure short-term borrowings,
public deposits, and for other purposes required by
law amounted to $96.3 million and $105.1 million at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company has the following balances of
securities available for sale as of December 31, 2004
that represent greater than 10% of shareholders equity:

Amortized Market

Cost Value

Federal Home Loan Bank .......... $ 72,000 71,585

Federal National Mortgage Association . 126,823 126,714
Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation ............ 514,581 510,653
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(4) Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses
A summary of loans by category is as follows:

(dotlars in thousands) December 31,
2004 2003
Commercial ................... $ 193,188 190,501
Real estate - construction ......... 20,148 7,476
Real estate mortgage ............ 822,103 779,227
Home equity lines of credit ........ 191,242 171,078
Installmentloans ............... 13,749 14,365
Totalloans .................... 1,240,430 1,162,647
Less: Unearned income .......... 365 381
Allowance for loan losses . ... 49,384 48,739
Netloans ..................... $1,190,681 1,113,527

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, loans to executive
officers, directors, and to associates of such persons
aggregated $2.7 million and $3.0 million, respectively.
During 2004, approximately $200 thousand of new
loans were made and repayments of loans totalled
approximately $500 thousand. In the opinion of manage-
ment, such loans were made in the ordinary course of
business on substantially the same terms, including
interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions. These loans do not
_ involve more than normal risk of collectibility or present
other unfavorable features.

TrustCo lends primarily in the Capital District region
of New York State and in the geographic territory
surrounding its borders, and to a lesser extent, in
central Florida and the mid-Hudson Valley region of
New York. Although the loan portfolio is diversified,

a portion of its debtors’ ability to repay depends
significantly on the economic conditions prevailing in
New York State.

The following table sets forth information with regard

to nonperforming loans:

(dollars in thousands) December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Loans in nonaccrual status .. $ 557 — 615
Loans contractually past due
3 payments or more and still
accruing interest ...... — — —
Restructured loans . ... ... .. 2,610 3,260 4,303

Total nonperforming loans . . . $3,167 3,260 4,918

At December 31, 2004 there were $557 thousand of
nonaccrual residential loans.

Interest on nonaccrual and restructured loans of
$377 thousand in 2004, $500 thousand in 2003, and
$700 thousand in 2002 would have been earned in
accordance with the original contractual terms of the
loans. Approximately $329 thousand, $431 thousand,
and $649 thousand of interest on nonaccrual and
restructured loans was collected and recognized as

income in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. There
are no commitments to extend further credit on
nonaccrual or restructured loans.

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses
account are summarized as follows:

(dollars in thousands) For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Balance at beginning of vear ..$ 48,738 52,558 57,203
Provision for loan losses .. ... 450 1,200 1,420
Loans charged off .......... (5,797) (9,598)  (8,350)
Recoveries on loans

previously charged off .. ...

Balance atyearend ......... $ 49,384

5,992 4,579 2,285
48,739 52,558

The Company identifies impaired loans and meas-
ures the impairment in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 114, “Accounting
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” (Statement 114),
as amended. A loan is considered impaired when it is
probable that the borrower will be unable to repay the
loan according to the original contractual terms of the
loan agreement or the loan is restructured in a troubled
debt restructuring. These standards are applicable
principally to commercial and commercial real estate
loans; however, certain provisions dealing with
restructured loans also apply to retail loan products.

There were no nonaccrual commercial and
commercial real estate loans classified as impaired
loans at December 31, 2004 and 2003. Retail loans
totaling $2.6 million as of December 31, 2004,
and $3.1 million as of December 31, 2003, were
restructured after the effective date of Statement 114
and, accordingly, are identified as impaired loans.
None of the allowance for loan losses has been
specifically allocated to these retail loans.

During 2004, 2003, and 2002, the average balance
of impaired loans was $2.9 million, $3.7 million, and
$4.9 million, respectively, and there was approximately
$314 thousand, $380 thousand, and $540 thousand
of interest income recorded on these loans in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

(5) Bank Premises and Equipment
A summary of premises and equipment at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Land ... ... $ 2,786 2,786
Buildings .......................... 28,038 26,942
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ....... 23,318 21,379
Leasehold improvements ... ........... 6,260 6,072
.................................. 60,402 57,179
Accumulated depreciation and

amortization . ... (37,923) (37,011)
Total ... $22,479 20,168
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Depreciation and amortization expense approximated
$1.9 million, $2.5 million, and $2.2 million for the years
2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Occupancy expense
of the Bank’s premises included rental expense of
$2.1 million in 2004, $1.8 million in 2003, and $1.6 million
in 2002.

(6) Deposits
Interest expense on deposits was as follows:

(doliars in thousands) For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

fnterest bearing

checking accounts ....  § 1,586 1,678 3,124
Savings accounts . ... ... 7,968 8,795 12,758
Time deposits and

money market accounts 28,223 29,370 39,268

$37,777 39,843 55,150

At December 31, 2004, the maturity of total time
deposits is as follows:

{dollars in thousands)

Undertyear ... ... ... ... ... ... $517,275
Tto2years ... . 154,740
2t03years ... 59,405
3todyears ... 141,252
4105YearS ... 102,659
OVEr S YearS ... oo e 1,918

$977,249

(7) Short-Term Borrowings
Short-term borrowings consisted of the following:

(dollars in thousands) 2004
Trustco Cash
Short-Term  Management
Account Account Total

Amount outstanding at

December 31,2004 ... § — 77,979 77,979
Maximum amount

outstanding at any

monthend . ......... — 115,681 115,681
Average amount

outstanding ......... —_ 100,855 100,855
Weighted average interest rate:

Fortheyear ......... —% 0.96 0.96

As ofyearend ... .... — 2.00 2.00
(dollars in thousands) 2003

Trustco Cash
Short-Term  Management
Account Account Total

Amount outstanding at

December 31,2003 ... § - 90,608 90,608
Maximum amount

outstanding at any

monthend .......... 91,184 90,608 181,792
Average amount

outstanding ......... 33,045 74,754 107,799
Weighted average interest rate:

Fortheyear ......... 0.82% 0.81 0.81

Asofyearend ....... — 0.65 0.65

The Cash Management Account represents retail
deposits with customers for which the Bank has pledged
certain assets as collateral.

Trustco also has an available line of credit with
the Federal Home Loan Bank which approximates the
balance of securities pledged against such borrowings.

(8) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
of $114 thousand and $239 thousand consisted of
FHLB term loans with interest rates ranging from
5.22% 10 6.29% and maturities ranging from 2004 to
2008. This debt was assumed as part of an acquisition
during 2000. The FHLB loans are collateralized by
approximately $500 thousand in deposits at the FHLB.

(9) Income Taxes
A summary of income tax expense/(benefit) included
in the Consolidated Statements of Income follows:

For the years ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Current tax expense (benefit):
Federal ................. $23,337 25104 8,398
State ... ... 396 864 (1,875}
Total current tax expense . . . .. 23,733 25,968 6,523

Deferred tax expense (henefit) . 3,106 (2,645) 10,500
Total income tax expense . . . .. $ 26,839 23,323 17,023

The tax effects of temporary differences that give
rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2004 and
2003, are as follows: '

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Deductible/ Deductible/
(taxable)  (taxable)

temporary temporary
differences differences

Bond accounting .................. $ (21) (830)
Benefits and deferred

remuneration ................... 1,632 2,104
Deferred loan fees, net ............ .. 79 154
Difference in reporting the

allowance for loan losses, net ... ... 22,565 22,309
Other income or expense

not yet reported for tax purposes .... 6,633 9,232
Depreciableassets ................. 1,502 2,068
Otheritems ...................... 887 956
Net deferred tax asset

atendofyear ................... 33,087 36,193
Net deferred tax asset at

beginningofyear ................ 36,193 33,548
Deferred tax benefit/(expense) ........ $ (3,106) 2,645

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to
management’s judgment that realization is more likely
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than not. Based primarily on the sufficiency of historical
and expected future taxable income, management
believes it is more likely than not that the remaining

net deferred tax asset of $33.1 million and $36.2 million
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, will

be realized.

In addition to the deferred tax items described in the
preceding table, the Company has deferred tax liabilities
of $3.0 million and $14.0 million at December 31, 2004
and 2003, relating to the net unrealized gains on
securities available for sale, respectively.

The effective tax rates differ from the statutory federal
income tax rate. The reasons for these differences are
as follows:

For the years ended

December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Statutory federal income tax rate..  35.0% 35.0 35.0
Increase/(decrease) in taxes

resulting from:

Tax exempt income .. ... . ... (3.5) (4.6) (5.8)
State income tax, net of

federal tax benefit .. ... . ... 0.8 08 05

Change in valuation allowance. — — (1.8)

Otheritems............... (0.1) (0.6) (2.2)

Effective income taxrate . ....... 32.2% 30.6 25.7

During the fourth quarter 2002, Robert A. McCormick
retired as President and Chief Executive Officer of
TrustCo. As a result of his retirement the Company
paid out his deferred compensation and supplemental
retirement package. As a result of the timing of these
payments, any uncertainty relative to the deductibility
of these payments for tax purposes was eliminated and
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $1.1 million
was reversed.

(10) Benefit Plans
(a) Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a trusteed non-contributory
pension plan covering employees that have completed
one year of employment and 1,000 hours of service.
The benefits are based on the sum of (a) a benefit
equal to a prior service benefit plus the average of the
employees’ highest five consecutive years’ compensation
in the ten years preceding retirement multiplied by a
percentage of service after a specified date plus
(b) a benefit based upon career average compensation.
The amounts contributed to the plan are determined
annually on the basis of (a) the maximum amount that
can be deducted for federal income tax purposes or
(b) the amount certified by a consulting actuary as
necessary to avoid an accumulated funding deficiency
as defined by the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, Contributions are intended to
provide not only for benefits attributed to service to date
but also for those expected to be earned in the future.
Assets of the plan are administered by Trustco Bank’s

Trust Department. The following tables set forth the plan’s
funded status as of a December 31 measurement date
and amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated
statements of condition at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Projected benefit obligation

atbeginningofyear ................ $24,555 22,169
Servicecost ... . i 784 695
Interestcost ... 1,499 1,409
Benefitspaid ....................... (1,411) {1,394}
Net actuarial loSS .................... ,154 1,676
Projected benefit obligation

atendofyear ..................... $27,581 24,555
Change in Plan Assets and
Reconciliation of Funded Status:
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Fair value of plan assets at

beginningofyear.................. $28.,474 26,251
Actual gainonplanassets ............. 2,179 3,617

Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ...

29,242 28,474

Fundedstatus ...................... 1,661 3,919
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) ... 14 (544)
Unrecognized prior service cost ... ..... 1,702 707

Net amount recognized $ 3,377 4,082

The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan was
$24.4 million and $21.5 million at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Components of Net Periodic Pension Expense/(Benefit):
For the years ended

December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Servicecost ... $ 784 695 651
Interestcost ..., 1,499 1,409 1,359
Expected return on plan assets ........ (1,669) (1,665) (2,184)
Amortization of net actuarial gain. ... ... — —  (213)
Amortization of unrecognized
priorservicecost ................. a0 25 25

Net periodic pension expense/(benefit) .. $§ 704 464 (362)

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected
future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

{dollars in thousands)

Year Pension Benefits
2005 $1,310
2006 1,302
2007 1,274
2008 1,258
2009 1,246
2010-2014 6,686
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The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
at December 31 are as follows:

2004 2003
Discountrate ...................covvinn.. 5.75% 6.00
Rate of increase in future compensation ... ... .. 5.00 5.00

The assumptions used to determine net periodic
pension expense/(benefit) for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Discountrate .................. 6.00% 6.50 6.75
Rate of increase in future

compensation ............... 5.00 5.00 6.50
Expected long-term rate of return

onassets ................... 6.00 6.50 7.25

The Company also has a supplementary pension plan
under which additional retirement benefits are accrued
for eligible executive officers. The expense recorded
for this plan was $662 thousand, $1.2 million, and
$1.6 million, in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. This
plan supplements the defined benefit retirement plan
for eligible employees that are negatively affected by
the Internal Revenue Service limit on the amount of
pension payments that are allowed from a retirement
plan. The supplemental plan provides eligible employees
with total benefit payments as calculated by the Trustco
retirement plan without regard to this limitation. Benefits
under this plan are calculated using the same actuarial
assumptions and interest rates as used for the retire-
ment plan calculations.

Rabbi trusts have been established for certain benefit
plans. These trust accounts are administered by the
Company’s Trust Department and invest primarily in
money market instruments. These assets are recorded
at their market value and are included as other assets
in the December 31, 2004 and 2003, Consolidated
Statements of Condition.

(b) Postretirement Benefits

The Company permits retirees under age 65 to
participate in the Company’s medical plan by making
certain payments. At age 65, the Bank provides a
Medicare Supplemental program to retirees. Assets
of the plan are invested primarily in individual stocks,
index funds, and tax exempt bonds.

In 2003, the Company amended the medical plan
to reflect changes to the retiree medical insurance
coverage portion. The Company’s subsidy of the retiree
medical insurance premiums will be reduced and
eliminated in 2006. ‘

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act)
became law in the United States. The Act introduced
a prescription drug benefit under Medicare as well as
a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care
benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least
actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D under the Act.
In accordance with FASB Staff Position FAS 106-1,

“Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to
the Medicare Prescription Drug, iImprovement and
Modernization Act of 2003,” the Company has elected
to defer recognition of the effects of the Act in any
measures of the benefit obligation or cost. The Company
is still analyzing the specific authoritative guidance on
the accounting for the federal subsidy, which was issued
in January 2005, but the Company anticipates that, in
order to make the plan actuarially equivalent, it will make
minor changes to its non-pension postretirement plan.
Accordingly, the measures of the accumulated non-
pension postretirement benefit obligation and net
periodic non-pension postretirement benefit cost do
not reflect any amount associated with the subsidy.

The following tables show the plan’s funded status
as of a December 31 measurement date and amounts
recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements
of Condition at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Change in Accumulated Benefit Obligation:

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Accumulated benefit obligation

atbeginningofyear................ $790 10,677
Servicecost ............... Ll 12 4
Retiree contributions ................. 230 173
Interestcost. . ...l 3 46
Benefitspaid ....................... (324) {360)
Planamendments ................... —_ (7,990)
Net actuarial (gain)loss ............... 152 (1,760)
Accumulated benefit obligation

atendofyear ..................... $891 790

Change in Plan Assets and
Reconciliation of Funded Status:

(doltars in thousands) 2004 2003

Fair value of plan assets at
beginningofyear .. ................

$10,986 9,666

Actual gainonplanassets ............. 834 1,507
Retiree contributions ................. 230 173
Benefits paid ....................... (324) (360)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year ... 11,726 10,986
Fundedstatus ...................... 10,835 10,196
Unrecognized net actuarial gain ........ (3,014) (2,866)
Unrecognized prior service credit ....... (7,182) (7,586)

Net amount recognized ............... $ 639 (256)

Components of Net Periodic Expense/(Benefit):
For the years ended

December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Servicecost ... el $ 12 4 320
Interestcost ............. ...l 31 46 528
Expected return on plan assets ........ (428) (377) (453)
Amortization of net actuarial gain....... (107) (43) (113)
Amortization of prior service credit ... .. (403) (403) —
Net periodic (benefit)/expense ......... $(895) (773) 282
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Expected Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

(dollars in thousands)

Year Postretirement Benefits
2005 $39
2006 40
2007 39
2008 39
2009 40
2010 - 2014 203

The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
at December 31 are as follows:

2004 2003
5.75% 6.00
The assumptions used to determine net periodic

pension expense/(benefit) for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

Discount rate

2004 2003 2002

Discountrate .................. 6.00% 6.50 6.75
Expected long-term rate of return

onassets ... 3.90 3.90 4.30

For measurement purposes, a graded annual rate
of increase in the per capita cost of covered benefits
(i.e., health care cost trend rate) was assumed for
2005 and thereafter. Due to the plan amendment
recognized in 2003 relating to the reimbursed portion
of the retiree’s medical insurance premiums, a one
percentage point increase or decrease in the assumed
health care cost in each year would have a negligible
impact on the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation as of December 31, 2004, and the interest
and service components of net periodic postretirement
benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(c) Major Categories of Pension and Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets:

The asset allocations of the Company’s pension
and postretirement benefit plans at December 31,
were as follows:

Pension Benefit  Postretirement Benefit

Plan Assets Plan Assets

2004 2003 2004 2003
Debt Securities. . . . .. 33.20% 36.55 36.61 57.24
Equity Securities. . . . . 64.52 61.45 61.81 4047
Other.............. 2.28 2.00 1.58 2.29
Total 100.00% 100.00 100.00 100.00

The expected long-term rate-of-return on plan assets,
noted in sections (a) and (b) above, reflects long-term
earnings expectations on existing plan assets. In
estimating that rate, appropriate consideration was given
to historical returns earned by plan assets and the rates

of return expected to be available for reinvestment. Rates
of return were adjusted to reflect current capital market
assumptions and changes in investment allocations.

The Company’s investment policies and strategies
for the pension benefit and postretirement benefit plans
prescribe a target allocation of 60% equity securities
and 40% debt securities for the asset categories. The
Company’s investment goals are to maximize returns
subject to specific risk management policies. s risk
management policies permit direct investments in equity
and debt securities and mutual funds while prohibiting
direct investment in derivative financial instruments.
The Company addresses diversification by the use of
mutual fund investments whose underlying investments
are in domestic and international debt and equity
securities. These mutual funds are readily marketable
and can be sold to fund benefit payment obligations as
they become payable.

The Company does not expect to make any
contributions to its pension and postretirement benefit
plans in 2005.

(d) Incentive and Bonus Plans

The Company provides a profit-sharing plan for
substantially all employees. The expense of this plan,
which is based on management discretion as defined
in the plan, and is subject to board approval, amounted
to $1.3 million in 2004 and $1.1 million in 2003 and 2002.

The Company also has an executive incentive plan.
The expense of this plan is based on the Company’s
performance and estimated distributions to participants
are accrued during the year and generally paid in the
following year. The expense recorded for this plan was
$2.1 million in 2004 and 2003, and $3.3 million in 2002.

The Company has awarded 2.7 million performance
bonus units to the executive officers and directors. These
units become vested and exercisable only under a change
of control as defined in the plan. The units were awarded
based upon the stock price at the time of grant and, if
exercised under a change of control, allow the holder
to receive the increase in value offered in the exchange
over the stock price at the date of grant for each unit.

(e) Stock Option Plans

Under the 2004 TrustCo Bank Corp NY Stock Option
Plan, the Company may grant options to its eligible
employees for up to approximately 2.0 million shares of
common stock. Under the 1995 TrustCo Bank Corp NY
Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant options
to its eligible employees for up to approximately 7.9
million shares of common stock. Under the 2004 Directors
Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant options to
its directors for up to approximately 200 thousand
shares of its common stock. Under the 1993 Directors
Stock Option Plan, the Company could have granted
options to its directors for up to approximately
531 thousand shares of its common stock.

Under each of these plans, the exercise price of each
option equals the market price of the Company’s stock
on the date of grant, and an option’s maximum term is
ten years. Options vest over five years from the date the
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options are granted for the employees plans and they are

( , : (11) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
immediately vested under the directors’ plan. A summary

of the status of TrustCo’s stock option plans as of

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and changes during

the years then ended, are as follows:

Outstanding Options  Exercisable Options

(a) Leases

The Bank leases certain banking premises. These
leases are accounted for as operating leases with
minimum rental commitments in the amounts presented
below. The majority of these leases contain options
to renew.

Weighted Weighted )
Average Average (dO”arS n thOUS&ﬂdS)
Option Optlon 2005 .. $ 2,588
Shares  Price  Shares  Price 388(75 ----------------------------------------- S?g?
Balance, January 1,2002 ... 8,805,804 $6.44 7427667 $5.85 2008 . ...y 2160
New options awarded - 2002. 837,750  11.83 182950 1183 p009 | .o 2162
Cancelled options - 2002 . . .. (45,430) 9.96 (45430) 9.96 2010 and after ... ..o 23:497
Exercised options - 2002 .... (2,952,304) 4.16 (2,952,304) 4.16
Options became exercisable . —_ — 1,112103 10.00 () Litigati §34,880
itigation
E::/ng;t’ic?:gzwzge?, ;882 - 664820 811 5724986 769 Existing litigation arising in the normal course of
Cancelled options - 2003 ... (60,396) 11.07 (60396 11.07 %ﬂ?g?ﬁfgg&g’;ﬂfﬂed to resultin any material
Exercised options - 2003 .... (1,645222) 542 (1,645222) 542
Options became exercisable . — — 382,752 10.49 (c) Oqtsourced Services
Balance, December 31,2003 . 4940202 8.97 4402120  8.74 During the fourth quarter 2001, the Company
‘ contracted with third-party service providers to perform
New options awarded - 2004 . 677,500 13.55 145100 13.55 certain banking functions beginning 2002. The out-
Cancelled options -2004 ....  (28,987) 10.38 (28,987) 10.38 : ; ; : :
Exerci . sourced services include data and item processing for
xercised options - 2004 . ... (1,143,605) 7.63(1,143,605) 7.63 the Bank and trust operai Th -
Options became exercisable . — — 333,394 10.63 perations. 1he service expense
d can vary based upon volume and nature of transactions
Balance, December 31,2004 . 4,445,110 $10.00 3,708,022 $9.42 processed. Outsourced service expense was $4.3 million

The following table summarizes information about
total stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

in 2004, $5.6 million in 2003 and $2.1 million in 2002.

(12) Earnings Per Share
A reconciliation of the component parts of earnings

Weighted per share for 2004, 2003 and 2002 follows:
Average  Weighted (dollars in thousands, Weighted
Range of Remaining Average except per share data) Average Shares Per share
Exercise Options Contractual Exercise Income  Outstanding Amounts
Price Qutstanding Life Price For the year ended
Less than December 31, 2004:
Basic EPS:
$7.50 ........ 615,646 2.9 years $ 5.89 Income available to
Between $7.51 common shareholders . ...  $56,540 74,278  $.761
and $10.00 . .. .. 2,398,964 5.5 years 9.49 Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Greater than Stock Options . ......... -_ 803 —
$1000 ... 1,430,500 8.9 years 12.64 Diluted EPS .............. $56,540 75,081  §.753
Total ............ 4,445,110 6.3years  $ 10.00 For the year ended
December 31, 2003:
The following table summarizes information about Basic EPS:
the exercisable stock options at December 31, 2004: Income available to
common shareholders . ... $53,031 74,337 $.713
- Effect of Dilutive Securities: .
Weighted : _ —
Average Weighted Stock Options . ......... 969
Eange of oot CRemamtmgl EAverage Diluted EPS .............. $53,031 75306  $.704
xercise ptions ontractua Xercise
Price Exercisable Life Price FOBt:Ceeﬁggfggfgooz
Less than Basic EPS;
$7.50 ........ 615,646 2.9 years $ 5.89 Income available to s ;
common shareholders . ... $49,244 72,675 678
Beme&%ﬁ 2347076 5.5 vears 0.48 Effect of Dilutive Securities:
e D 9y ’ Stock Options . ......... — 1,943 —
Greater than ‘
$1000 ....... 745,300 8.4 years 12.16 DilutedEPS .............. $49,244 74,618 $.660
Total ............ 3,708,022 5.6 years $ 9.42
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The number of antidilutive stock options excluded
from diluted earnings per share for 2004, 2003, and
2002 was not significant.

(13) Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

Loan commitments to extend credit are agreements
to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require a fee. Commitments some-
times expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. These arrangements have
credit risk essentially the same as that involved in
extending loans to customers and are subject to the
Bank’s normal credit policies, including obtaining
collateral. The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit loss
for loan commitments, including unused lines of credit,
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, was $313.3 million
and $273.9 million, respectively. Approximately 66% of
these commitments were for variable rate products at
the end of 2004.

The Company does not issue any guarantees that
require liability-recognition or disclosure, other than
its standby letters of credit. The Company has issued
conditional commitments in the form of standby letters
of credit to guarantee payment on behalf of a customer
and guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. Stand by letters of credit generally arise in
connection with lending relationships. The credit risk
involved in issuing these instruments is essentially the
same as that involved in extending loans to customers.
Contingent obligations under standby letters of credit
totaled approximately $3.6 million and $3.9 million at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and
represent the maximum potential future payments the
Company could be required to make. Typically, these
instruments have terms of 12 months or less and
expire unused; therefore, the total amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each
customer is evaluated individually for creditworthiness
under the same underwriting standards used for
commitments to extend credit and on-balance sheet
instruments. Company policies governing loan collateral
apply to standby letters of credit at the time of credit
extension. Loan-to-value ratios are generally consistent
with loan-to-value requirements for other commercial
loans-secured by similar types of collateral. The fair
value of the Company’s standby letters of credit at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was insignificant.

No losses are anticipated as a result of loan
commitments or standby letters of credit.

(14) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values shown below represent manage-
ment's estimates of values at which the various
types of financial instruments could be exchanged in

transactions between willing, unrelated parties. They
do not necessarily represent amounts that would be
received or paid in actual transactions.

As of
(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2004
Carrying Fair
Value Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ...... $ 696,430 696,430
Securities available forsale ...... 895,989 895,989
Loans ...l 1,190,681 1,254,986
Accrued interest receivable . ... .. 14,671 14,671
Finangial liabilities:
Demand deposits ............. 237,423 237,423
Interest bearing deposits ........ 2,289,679 2,289,679
Short-term borrowings ......... 77,979 77,979
Long-termdebt ............... 114 114
Accrued interest payable ........ 1,545 1,545
As of
(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2003
Carrying Fair
Value Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... .. $ 411,682 411,682
Securities available forsale ... ... 1,176,926 1,176,926
Loans .........ccovviivennnn.. 1,113,527 1,207,958
Accrued interest receivable ...... 17,535 17,535
Financial liabilities:
Demand deposits ............. 197,116 197,116
Interest bearing deposits ........ 2,222,694 2,229,139
Short-term borrowings ......... 90,608 90,608
Long-termdebt ............... 239 239
Accrued interest payable ........ 1,470 1,470

The specific estimation methods and assumptions
used can have a substantial impact on the resulting
fair values of financial instruments. Following is a brief
summary of the significant methods and assumptions
used in estimating fair values:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying values of these financial instruments

approximate fair values.

Securities

Fair values for all securities portfolios are based
upon quoted market prices, where available. The
carrying value of certain local, unrated municipal
obligations was used as an approximation of fair value.

Loans

The fair values of all loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses with discount rates equal
to the interest rates currently being offered for loans with
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.
Deposit Liabilities

The fair values disclosed for noninterest bearing
deposits, interest bearing checking accounts, savings
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accounts, and money market accounts are, by definition,
equal to the amount payable on demand at the balance
sheet date. The carrying value of all variable rate certifi-
cates of deposit approximates fair value. The fair value
of fixed rate certificates of deposit is estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses with discount rates equal
to the interest rates currently being offered on certificates
of similar size and remaining maturity.

Short-Term Borrowings, Long-Term Debt and
Other Financial Instruments

The fair value of all short-term borrowings, long-term
debt, and other financial instruments approximates the
carrying value.
Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments
with off-balance sheet risk. Such financial instruments
consist of commitments to extend financing and standby
letters of credit. If the commitments are exercised by the
prospective borrowers, these financial instruments will
become interest earning assets of the Company. if the
commitments expire, the Company retains any fees
paid by the prospective borrower. The fair value of
commitments is estimated based upon fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into
consideration the remaining terms of the agreements
and the present credit worthiness of the borrower. For
fixed rate commitments, the fair value estimation takes
into consideration an interest rate risk factor. The fair
value of these off-balance sheet items approximates
the recorded amounts of the related fees, which are
considered to be immaterial.

The Company does not engage in activities involving
interest rate swaps, forward placement contracts, or any
other instruments commonly referred to as derivatives.

(15) Regulatory Capital Requirements

Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) capital regulations
require banks to maintain minimum levels of regulatory
capital. Under the regulations in effect at December 31,
2004 and 2003, Trustco Bank was required to maintain
a minimum tangible capital of 1.5% of adjusted total
assets, a minimum leverage ratio of core capital to
adjusted total assets of 4.00% and a minimum ratio
of total capital to risk weighted assets of 8.00%.

Federal banking regulations also establish a frame-
work for the classification of banks into five categories:
well capitalized, adequately capitalized, under capital-
ized, significantly under capitalized, and critically under
capitalized. Generally, an institution is considered well
capitalized it it has a leverage capital ratio of at least 5.0%
(based on total adjusted quarterly average assets), a
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.0%, and a total
risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.0%.

The foregoing capital ratios are based on specific
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as caiculated under regulatory
accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifica-
tions are also subject to qualitative judgments by the

regulator about capital components, risk weighting
and other factors.

Management believes that as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, Trustco Bank met all capital adequacy
requirements to which it was subject. Further, the
most recent regulator notification categorized the
Bank as a well-capitalized institution. There have
been no conditions or events since that notification
that management believes have changed the Bank's
capital classification.

Under its prompt corrective action regulations, the
OTS is required to take certain supervisory actions
(and may take additional discretionary actions) with
respect to an undercapitalized institution. Such actions
could have a direct material effect on an institution’s
financial statements. As stated above, the Bank has
been classified as well capitalized for regulatory
purposes, and therefore, these regulations do not
apply. The following is a summary of actual capital
amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, for Trustco Bank:

(doltars in thousands) As of December 31, 2004

Amount Ratio
Leveragecapital: ............... $203,177 7.28%
Tier 1 risk-based capital: .......... 203,177 15.79
Total risk-based capital: . ... ....... 219,668 17.08

As of December 31, 2003

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: . .............. $178,952 6.51%
Tier 1 risk-based capital: .......... 178,952 14.54
Total risk-based capital: ........... 194,745 15.83

The following is a summary of actual capital amounts
and ratios as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 for
TrustCo on a consolidated basis:

(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2004

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: . .............. $220,819 7.74%
Tier 1 risk-based capital: .......... 220,819 17.09
Total risk-based capital: ........... 237,378 18.37
(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2003

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: ............... $205,720 7.53%
Tier 1 risk-based capital: .......... 205,720 16.54
Total risk-based capital: ........ ... 221,679 17.82

—
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(16) Parent Company Only
The following statements pertain to TrustCo Bank
Corp NY (Parent Company):

Statements of Income

(dollars in thousands) Years Ended December 31,

Income: 2004 2003 2002
Dividends and interest
from subsidiaries .......... $19,403 31096 35,898
Net gain on sales of securities ... 21,157 12,952 7,587
Income from other investments . . 424 1,110 1,394
Total income ......... ... 40,984 45158 44,879
Expense:
Operating supplies ........... 61 75 72
Professional services ......... 203 63 6,173
Miscellaneous expense . ....... 85 95 1,167
Total expense ........... 349 233 7,412
Income before income
taxes and subsidiaries’
undistributed earnings ........ 40,635 44,925 37,467
Income tax expense ........... 8.303 5,267 135
Income before subsidiaries’
undistributed earnings . ....... 32,332 39,658 37,332
Equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries ....... 24,208 13,373 11,912
Netincome ................ .. $56,540 53,031 49,244
Statements of Condition
{doltars in thousands) December 31,
Assets: 2004 2003
Cash in subsidiary bank .. ........... $ 20,530 17,363
{nvestments in subsidiaries .......... 205,522 186,290
Securities available forsale .......... 9,106 35,323
Otherassets ..................... 824 1,741
Totalassets .................. $235,982 240,717
Liabilities and sharehalders’ equity:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .. 10,150 13,955
Total liabilities ................ 10,150 13,955
Shareholders’ equity ................ 225,832 226,762
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity ... $235,982 240,717

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(dollars in thousands)

Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents;

Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome ..................... $56,540 53,031
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries .. ... (24,208) (13,373) (11,912)
Net gain on sales of securities ... (21,157} (12,952) (7,587)
Net change in other assets and
accrued expenses ..........

Total adjustments ...........

Net cash provided by operating
activities . ... o

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of securities
available for sale
Purchases of securities available
forsale ............oiiis.
Net cash provided by

49,244

4,764 972 (5677)
(40,601) (25,353) (25,176)

15,939 27,678 24,068

57,997 49,831 18,079

(29,951) (23,475) (12,834)

investing activities ......... 28,046 26,356 5,245
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock
options and related tax benefits ... 9,281 12,084 18,885

Dividends paid ................. {44,504) (45,008) (43,188)
Payments to acquire treasury stock .. (13,482) (30,034) (8,844)
Proceeds from sales of treasury

stock ... 7,887 7,605 7,754
Net cash used in financing
activities ................ (40,818) (55,353) (25,393)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and :
cash equivalents ............ 3,167 (1,319) 3,920
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginningofyear .............. 17,363 18,682 14,762
Cash and cash equivalents at
endofyear ................... $20,530 17,363 18,682
Supplemental Information
Increase (decrease) in dividends payable  § 69  (475) 443

Change in unrealized gain on
securities available for sale —

gross ... 19,328 638 1,340
Change in deferred tax effect on

unrealized gain on securities

available forsale .............. (7,707)  (261)  (547)
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TrustCo Bank Corp NY Officers and Board of Directors

OFFICERS

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Robert J. McCormick

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Robert T. Cushing

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF BANKING OFFICER
Scot R. Salvador

SECRETARY
Robert M. Leonard

ASSISTANT SECRETARIES
Cheri J. Parvis
Thomas M. Poitras

Directors of TrustCo Bank Corp NY
are also Directors of Trustco Bank

HONORARY DIRECTORS

Lionel O. Barthold
M. Norman Brickman
Berpard J. King
Nancy A. McNamara
William H. Milton, 1l

Trustco Bank Officers

PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Robert J. McCormick

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

Robert T. Cushing

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
AND CHIEF BANKING OFFICER
Scot R. Salvador

AUDITOR
Kenneth E. Hughes, Jr.

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE
Vice Presidents

Michael M. Ozimek

Daniel R. Saullo

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Joseph Lucarelli
President
Traditional Builders

Anthony J. Marinello, M.D., Ph.D.
Physician

Robert A. McCormick
Chairman
TrustCo Bank Corp NY

William D. Powers
Partner

Powers & Co., LLC
Consulting

William J. Purdy

President

Welbourne & Purdy Realty, Inc.
Real Estate

John S. Morris, Ph.D.
James H. Murphy, D.D.S.
Richard J. Murray, Jr.
Daniel J. Rourke, M.D.

Anthony M. Salernc
Edwin O. Salisbury
William F. Terry

BRANCH ADMINISTRATION/
MARKETING

Administrative Vice President
Robert M. Leonard

MORTGAGE LOANS
Vice President
Michael J. Lofrumento

: . Officer
Vice President Robert O. Breton, Esq.
Deborah K. Appel

eborah K. Appe OPERATIONS

Officers

John R. George
Paul D. Matthews
Michael V. Pitnell
Mary Jean Riley

COMPLIANCE
Vice President
Thomas M. Poitras

COMMERCIAL LENDING
Vice President
Patrick M. Canavan

Vice Presidents
Christopher L. Cox
Eric W. Schreck

PERSONNEL/QUALITY
CONTROL

Vice President

Cheri J. Parvis

TRUST DEPARTMENT
Kevin M. Curley

Vice President
Patrick J. LaPorta, Esq.

Officer Officers
Paul R. Steenburgh Craig C. Chenevert
FACILITIES Stephanie A. Duma

Vice President
George W. Wickswat

Richard W. Provost

Harry E. Whittingham, Jr.

Administrative Vice President
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Branch Locations

Altamont Ave. Office
1400 Altamont Ave.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 356-1317

Altamont Ave, West Office
1900 Altamont Ave.
Rotterdam, NY
Telephone: 355-1900

Ballston Spa Office
235 Church Ave.
Ballston Spa, NY
Telephone: 885-1561

Bedford Hills Office

180 Harris Rd.

Bedford Hills, NY 10507
Telephone: (914) 666-6230

Bennington Office

215 North St.

Bennington, VT

Telephone: {802) 447-4952

Brandywine Office

State St. at Brandywine Ave.

Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 346-4295

Briarcliff Manor Office

64 Route 100

Briarcliff Manor, NY 10510
Telephone: (914) 762-7133

Canajoharie Office
211 Erie Bivd.
Canajoharie, NY
Telephone: 673-2012

Central Ave, Office
163 Central Ave.
Albany, NY
Telephone: 426-7291

Clifton Country Road Office
7 Clifton Country Rd.
Clifton Park, NY
Telephone: 371-5002

Clifton Park Office
1018 Route 146
Clifton Park, NY
Telephone: 371-8451

Cobleskill Office
RR#3,Rt. 7
Cobleskill, NY
Telephone: 254-0290

Colonial Drive Office

4450 East Colonial Dr.
Orlando, FL 32803
Telephone: (407) 895-6393

Colonie Office

1892 Central Ave.

Colonie Plaza, Colonie, NY
Telephone: 456-0041

Dean Road Office

3920 Dean Rd.

Orlando, FL 32817
Telephone: (407) 657-8001

Delmar Office

167 Delaware Ave.
Delmar, NY
Telephone: 439-9941

East Colonial Office

12901 East Colonial Drive
Orlando, FL

Telephone: (407) 275-3075

East Greenbush Office
501 Columbia Turnpike
Rensselaer, NY
Telephone: 479-7233

Elmsford Office

100 Clearbrook Rd.
Elmsford, NY

Telephone: (914) 345-1808

Exit 8/Crescent Rd. Office
CVS Plaza

Clifton Park, NY
Telephone: 383-0032

Fishkill Office

1542 Route 52
Fishkill, NY
Telephone: 896-8260

Freemans Bridge Rd. Office
Trustco Center

Glenville, NY

Telephone: 344-7510

Glens Falls Office

3 Warren Street
Glens Falls, NY
Telephone: 798-8131

Greenwich Office

131 Main St.
Greenwich, NY
Telephone: 692-2233

Guildertand Office
3900 Carman Rd.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 355-4830

Halfmoon Office
Country Dollar Plaza
Halfmoon, NY
Telephone: 371-0593

Hoosick Falls Office
47 Main St.

Hoosick Falls, NY
Telephone: 686-5352

Hudson Office

507 Warren St.
Hudson, NY
Telephone: 828-9434

Hudson Falls Office
3376 Burgoyne Ave.
Hudson Falls, NY
Telephone: 747-0886

Lake Mary Office

350 West Lake Mary Bivd.
Sanford, FL 32773
Telephone: (407) 330-7106

Latham Office

1 Johnson Rd.
Latham, NY
Telephone: 785-0761

Loudon Plaza Office
372 Northern Bivd.
Albany, NY
Telephone: 462-6668

Longwood Office

1400 West State Rd.
Longwoed, FL

Telephone (407) 339-3396

Madison Ave. Office
1084 Madison Ave.
Albany, NY
Telephone: 489-4711

Malta 4 Corners Office
2471 Route 9

Malta, NY

Telephone: 899-1056

Malta Mall Office

43 Round Lake Rd.
Baiiston Lake, NY
Telephone: 899-1558

Mayfair Office

286 Saratoga Rd.
Glenville, NY
Telephone: 399-8121

Mechanicville Office

9 Price Chopper Plaza
Mechanicville, NY
Telephone: 664-1059

Milton Office

2 Trieble Ave.
Ballston Spa, NY
Telephone: 885-0498

Mont Pleasant Office
Crane St. at Main Ave.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 346-1267

New Scotland Office
301 New Scotland Ave.
Afbany, NY

Telephone: 438-7838

Newton Plaza Office
588 New Loudon Rd.
Latham, NY
Telephone: 786-3687

Niskayuna-Woodlawn Office
3461 State St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 377-2264

Osprey Office

1300 South Tamiami Trail
Osprey, FL

Telephone: (941) 918-9380

Pomona Office

1581 Route 202
Pomona, NY
Telephone: 354-0176

Poughkeepsie Office
2656 South Rd.
(Route 9)
Poughkeepsie, NY
Telephone: 485-6419

Queensbury Office

118 Quaker Rd.

Suite 9, Queensbury, NY
Telephone: 798-7226

Rotterdam Office

Curry Road Shopping Ctr.
Rotterdam, NY
Telephone: 355-8330

Rotterdam Square Office
93 W. Campbeli Rd.
Rotterdam, NY
Telephone: 377-2393

Route 2 Office — Latham
201 Troy-Schenectady Rd.
Latham, NY

Telephone: 785-7155

Route 7 Office

1156 Troy-Schenectady Rd.
Latham, NY

Telephone: 785-4744

Sarasota Office

2704 Bee Ridge Road
Sarasota, FL

Telephone: (941) 929-9451

Saratoga Office

34 Congress St.

Saratoga Springs, NY 12866
Telephone: 587-3500

Scotia Office

123 Mohawk Ave.
Scotia, NY
Telephone: 372-9416

Sheridan Plaza Office
1350 Gerling St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 377-8517

Shoppers’ World Office

Old Rte. 146 and Plank Rd.
Clifton Park, NY
Telephone: 383-6850

Slingerlands Office

1569 New Scotland Avenue
Slingerlands, NY
Telephone: (518) 439-9352

South Glens Falls Office
Glengate Shopping Plaza
133 Saratoga Road, Suite 1
South Glens Falls, NY
Telephone: 793-7668

State Farm Rd. Office
2050 Western Ave.
Guilderland, NY
Telephone: 452-6913

State St. Albany Office
112 State St.

Albany, NY
Telephone: 436-9043

State St. Schenectady Office
320 State St.

Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 377-3311

Stuyvesant Plaza Office
Western Ave. at Fuller Rd.
Albany, NY

Telephone: 489-2616

Tanners Main Office
345 Main St.

Catskill, NY
Telephone: 943-2500

Tanners West Side Office
238 West Bridge St.
Catskill, NY

Telephone: 943-5090

Troy Office

5th Ave. and State St.
Troy, NY

Telephone: 274-5420

Union Street East Office
1700 Union St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 382-7511

Upper New Scotland Office
583 New Scotland Ave.
Albany, NY

Telephone: 438-6611

Upper Union Street Office
1620 Union St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: 374-4056

Ushers Road Office
308 Ushers Rd.
Ballston Lake, NY
Telephone: 877-8069

Valatie Office

2929 Route 9

Valatie, NY

Telephone: (518) 758-2265

Wappingers Falls Office
1490 Route 9

Wappingers Falls, NY
Telephone: (845) 298-9315

‘West Sand Lake Office
3707 NY Rt. 43

West Sand Lake, NY
Telephone: 674-3327

Wilton Mall Office
Route 50

Saratoga Springs, NY
Telephone: 583-1716
‘Wolf Road Office

34 Wolf Rd.

Albany, NY
Telephone: 458-7761

Wynantskill Office
134-136 Main St., Rt. 66
Wynantskill, NY
Telephone: 286-2674
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General Information

ANNUAL MEETING CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Monday, May 9, 2005 5 Sarnowski Drive

10:00 AM Glenville, NY 12302

192 Erie Boulevard (518) 377-3311

Schenectady, NY 12305

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available to shareholders of TrustCo Bank Corp NY. It provides for the
reinvestment of cash dividends and optional cash payments to-purchase additional shares of TrustCo stock. The
Plan

has certain administrative charges, and provides a convenient method of acquiring additional shares. Trustco
Bank acts as administrator for this service, and is the agent for shareholders in these transactions. Shareholders
who want additional information may contact the TrustCo Shareholder Services Department at (518) 381-3601.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS

Electronic deposit of dividends, which offers safety and convenience, is available to TrustCo shareholders who
wish to have dividends deposited directly to personal checking, savings or other accounts. Electing direct deposit
will not affect the mailing of annual and quarterly reports and proxy materials. If you would like to arrange direct
deposit, please write the TrustCo Shareholder Services Department at the corporate headquarters address listed
on this page.

DUPLICATE MAILING NOTIFICATION

If you are a shareholder of record and are currently receiving multiple copies of TrustCo’s annual and quarterly
reports, please contact the TrustCo Shareholder Services Department at (518) 381-3601, or at the corporate
headquarters address listed on this page.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AT TRUSTCO
Trustco Bank is an Affirmative Action Equal Opportunity Employer.

FORM 10-K

TrustCo Bank Corp NY will provide, without charge, a copy of its Form 10-K upon written request. Requests
and related inquiries should be directed to Robert M. Leonard, Secretary, TrustCo Bank Corp NY, P.O. Box 380,
Schenectady, New York 12301-0380.

CODE OF CONDUCT

TrustCo Bank Corp NY will provide, without charge, a copy of its Code of Conduct upon written request.
Requests and related inquiries should be directed to Cheri J. Parvis, Vice President-Personnel, TrustCo Bank
Corp NY,

P.O. Box 1082, Schenectady, New York 12301-1082.

NASDAQ SYMBOL: TRST
The Corporation’s common stock trades on The Nasdaq Stock MarketSM under the symbol TRST.

SUBSIDIARIES:

Trustco Bank ORE Subsidiary Corp.
Glenville, New York Schenectady, New York
Member FDIC

(and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Trustco Vermont Investment Company
Bennington, Vermont)

TRANSFER AGENT

Trustco Bank

Securities Department

P.O. Box 380

Schenectady, New York 12301-0380

Trusteo Bank® is a registered service mark with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office.




